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Chairman’s Message
FREAME

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China Best Group
Holding Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

During the year, the Group strived to consolidate and develop its
existing principal businesses and sought suitable investment projects
to explore new businesses. For the existing principal businesses, the
aggregate revenue for financial services business (such as money lending
and finance leasing) decreased as compared with last year; the trading
business recorded a substantial decline in the revenue as compared
with last year; for the brokerage business of licensed companies, the
revenue recorded had yet to meet the expectation despite seeing
certain increases, and therefore, the Group assessed and adjusted the
profit forecast of the business and finally made some provision for
impairment loss of relevant goodwill; the freight forwarding business,
which accounted for a smaller proportion, also recorded a decline as
compared with last year; in respect of securities investment, the Group
had taken a wait-and-see attitude without adjusting its investment
portfolio in view of the volatile securities market. During the year, The
Group's annual results suffered substantial losses due to the absence
of extraordinary gain from the disposal of associates during the year as
compared with last year coupled with an overall decline in the revenue,
provision made for certain impairment losses and fair value loss. As for
exploring new businesses, the Group managed to acquire commercial
properties located in Beijing in the form of equity transfer at the end
of the year, for the purposes of earning rental returns and grasping the
appreciation potential of such properties and hence starting to develop
the real estate-related businesses.

In terms of capital management, the Company completed two
placements of new shares during the year and raised net proceeds of
approximately HK$243 million, which had strengthened the financial
resources of the Group and also expanded the shareholder base as
well as capital base of the Company. Such proceeds were mainly used
for mergers and acquisitions, the carrying out of the money lending
business and the replenishment of the working capital.
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Looking forward, the geopolitical risks, European and US fiscal and
monetary policies and potential risks arising from international trade
conflicts will continue to bring challenges to the financial market. It
is predicted that the future will be filled with both challenges and
opportunities. The Group will make full preparations to grasp the new
growth opportunities. Looking at the current market situation, the
Group is concerned about the real estate-related business opportunities
in Mainland China and intends to continue to develop its financial
services business while doing the layout for the Group’s real estate-
related business segments, in the hope of creating a new strategic
direction for diversifying its business.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the management, our employees and partners for
their contributions to the development of the Group as well as to
shareholders for their continued support to the Company. With the
support and contributions from all parties, the Group will continue to
strive for the best to achieve better performance and create greater
value for shareholders!

Wang Yingqian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Year ended
BEUTHHLEE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=ZHA=+—H +—-BA=+—8
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEET
Financial Results Highlight M EERE
Turnover B 218.0 537.5
Other operating (loss) gain (net) Habsgees (E1E) K (7.2) 8.5
Total expenses Y Hsa%E (81.2) (73.9)
Gain on disposal of asset classified as HESFAFIELHEEE 2 W=
held for sale - 0.3
Gain on disposal of an associate e A Qe 2 W - 29.4
Share of losses of associates DAEEEE R BB 18 - (2.2)
Impairment loss on finance lease receivable f& Ut FhE S 718 ~ B E & 18 (13.6) -
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE (29.0) -
Net (loss) profit before tax & AHNBRBEERFERERATZ
non-controlling interests (B518) %R FH (74.1) 32.5
(Loss) profit for the year attributable ZAQTHEEAEEER (EE)
to owners of the Company & Al (75.5) 24.5
As at
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=B=+—H +=ZA=+—¢H
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEET
(Restated)
(E5)
Extract of Financial Position B 7 AR O 6 8%
Total assets EERE 1,288.1 1,180.2
Total liabilities BEBEE (53.0) (76.6)
Net current assets mEEEFE 1,038.2 976.9
Bank balances and cash WITEBR MRS 274.8 173.3
Total net assets BEESFHEAER 1,235.1 1,103.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's turnover was
approximately HK$218.0 million, representing a decrease of 59.4%
as compared with HK$537.5 million last year. The net loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$75.5 million
as compared with the net profit of approximately HK$24.5 million
last year. The decline in the Group’s financial result was mainly
attributable to, among other things, (i) the gain on disposal of an
associate of approximately HK$29.4 million recognised in 2017 which
was a non-recurring income; (ii) the recognition of impairment loss of
approximately HK$13.6 million in relation to a finance lease receivable
for a customer’s default in payment; (iii) the recognition of impairment
loss of approximately HK$29.0 million on goodwill in relation to
regulated financial services business; (iv) the increase in unrealised loss
on fair value change on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss by approximately HK$11.8 million and (v) the decrease in the
Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Finance Leasing Business

The Group commenced its finance leasing business in July 2015 and
has been engaged in providing finance lease services in the PRC. The
sale and lease back arrangement is the main business model for existing
customers. The leased assets primarily consist of plant and equipment,
motor vehicles and other tangible assets. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the turnover of the Group's finance leasing business
amounted to approximately HK$28.0 million (2017: approximately
HK$28.6 million). During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
took legal actions against one leasee for its default in payment and
an impairment loss of approximately HK$13.6 million was recognised
with reference to this leasee’s financial status and legal opinion from
independent legal adviser. Subsequent to the reporting date, the
Group agreed on debts settlement arrangement with several leasees,
among which, finance lease interest of approximately RMB441,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$521,000) and consultancy income
of approximately RMB16,323,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,291,000) have been agreed by the parties to be waived. A total
of waived amount of approximately HK$17,004,000 was accounted for
in the year ended 31 December 2018. Corresponding segment loss of
approximately HK$0.9 million, including the impairment loss on finance
lease receivable of approximately HK$13.6 million, was incurred for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: segment profit of approximately
HK$14.8 million).
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BEENWE DM

Money Lending Business

The Group holds a money lenders licence in Hong Kong and provides
loan facilities to prospective customers including enterprises and
individuals. This segment has begun to generate returns to the Group
since April 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the turnover
of the Group’s money lending business amounted to approximately
HK$24.0 million (2017: approximately HK$32.1 million). Corresponding
segment profit of approximately HK$16.6 million was made for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$23.7 million).

Brokerage Business

The Group acquired several companies which are principally engaged
in the provision of financial services, including securities and futures
dealing, margin financing, asset management and stock broking in
Hong Kong on 14 August 2017. Since then the Group has provided
brokerage services for securities and futures traded on exchanges
in Hong Kong and major overseas countries. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the turnover of the Group's brokerage business
amounted to approximately HK$1.5 million (2017: approximately
HK$1.3 million). Considering this segment’s past performance since
completion of the aforesaid acquisition and the current conditions,
in particular uncertainties in the financial market, an impairment loss
on goodwill of approximately HK$29.0 million was recognised in the
year ended 31 December 2018 with reference to the valuation result
of independent professional valuers. Corresponding segment loss
of approximately HK$38.6 million, including the impairment loss on
goodwill, was incurred for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$4.2 million).

Trading Business

The Group is trading goods, including radio system and electronic
appliance, in the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
turnover of the Group’s trading business amounted to approximately
HK$159.3 million (2017: approximately HK$356.9 million) whereas the
gross profit was approximately HK$2.8 million (2017: approximately
HK$7.3 million). The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$6.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: a profit of
approximately HK$1.5 million) in this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Securities Investment Business

It represents trading of listed equity securities in the Hong Kong stock
market and dividend income (if any) from such listed equity securities.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not trade any
listed equity securities and hence no turnover and realised gain/loss
of the Group’s securities investment business was generated (2017:
turnover of approximately HK$112.0 million and realised loss of
approximately HK$3.3 million). During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group recorded an unrealised fair value loss of the listed
securities of approximately HK$13.4 million (2017: net unrealised fair
value loss of approximately HK$1.6 million). For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group did not receive any dividend income (2017:
nil). As at 31 December 2018, the Group held trading securities with
value of approximately HK$3.0 million (2017: approximately HK$16.4
million).

Freight Forwarding Business

This segment represents the provision of international air and sea freight
forwarding and logistic services to customers in Singapore and United
States of America. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the turnover
of the Group's freight forwarding business amounted to approximately
HK$5.2 million (2017: approximately HK$6.6 million). Corresponding
gross profit of approximately HK$1.6 million and segment loss of
approximately HK$0.4 million were made for the year ended 31
December 2018 respectively (2017: gross profit of approximately
HK$1.9 million and segment loss of approximately HK$3,000).

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, apart from the existing business operations, the
Group will from time to time explore investment opportunities in the
market, in particular the PRC market, for business development of
the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was
considering several potential projects and realised one project in relation
to investment properties located in a prime location in Beijing as a start
for the Group to develop its property-related business. The PRC property
market has gone through a rapid growth stage in the past decades and
come to a steady status by introducing city-based adjustments, rational
policies and restructuring. The Group wishes to leverage its client base
and resources to strengthen its position in this new business segment
and accelerate its growth to become one of the Group’s principal
businesses. In addition, the Group is formulating its development in
the assets management industry and is in negotiation for a possible
acquisition as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 16
January 2019.
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BEENWE DM

While the outlook for the global economy is uncertain with worries of
international trade conflicts and geopolitics, the Group will continue
reviewing its strategy of and resources allocation for respective business
segments and developments and prioritise its resources into growing
businesses. The Board is convinced that it is the fundamental basis on
which the Company generates and preserves value over the longer term
and the strategy for delivering the objectives of the Company. The Board
will closely monitor the business environment with the aim to maximise
the returns of the shareholders of the Company.

LIQUIDITY AND CASHFLOW RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the equity and net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,235.1 million (2017: approximately
HK$1,103.6 million (restated)) and HK$1,038.2 million (2017:
approximately HK976.9 million) respectively. On the same date, the
Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$274.8 million
(2017: approximately HK$173.3 million) and the current ratio was 20.58
(2017: 13.76). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no
interest bearing borrowing.

The Group has sufficient and readily available financial resources for
both general working capital purposes and existing business operation.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, none of the Group’s securities was
pledged to brokers to secure the margin loan. As at 31 December 2018
and 2017, there were no other significant assets pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
approximately HK$0.2 million (2017: approximately HK$1.3 million) as
capital expenditure mainly in respect of plant and equipment situated in
Hong Kong and PRC offices.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitment of
HK$68.0 million in relation to the acquisition of a subsidiary (2017: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$16.2 million (2017: approximately HK$30.8 million (restated)), and
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$3.0
million (2017: approximately HK$16.4 million).

BEENWE DN
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(i)
Flegance Optical Internatonal Holdings Liited (907)"EO') ERLSARERERLT
(07 ([EEx22R5E)) 7800 7800 2 2% (1337) 3,003 16,380 04 148 18,004
Based on public information available at the website of The Stock IRIEBERAFE AR EBBHAIZIHNER

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as at the date
of this report, EOIH is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading
of optical frames and sunglasses, property investment, investment
in debts and securities, money lending and film distribution and
investment business.

The Group’s equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income as at 31 December 2018 comprised of (i) listed
equity investment in London at a fair value of approximately HK$5.3
million; and (ii) unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong at fair value of
approximately HK$10.9 million.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all investments at fair value
through profit or loss represented listed securities in Hong Kong. As at
31 December 2018, the Group recorded an unrealised fair value loss
of approximately HK$13.4 million in respect of investment in listed
securities held for trading.

The Board acknowledges that the performance of the equities may be
affected by the degree of volatility in the stock market and susceptible
to other external factors that may affect their values. Accordingly, in
order to mitigate possible financial risks related to the equities, the
Board will continue to closely monitor the performance of its investment
portfolio from time to time.

1"

N ([BERPT)) MUb RIS 2 R A
EREAPEREEEIZRERERLAL
REZHERBEE MERE BHERES
BE BEAREZETRRERES-

S=hy g

AEEBR-_ZTE—NF+_A=+—HZ&
NFEFAEMEERZ Z BARE BTG
ANFEX) 55,300,000 2 Az Em
fE A E 5 R (i)~ F{E 49 410,900,000 7T
ZREBZIELETMBRAES-

RZE—NFR_E—+tF+_A=+—
H FIERAFEFABEZZERETERS
tmEE- R _E-—NF+_A=1+—8"
AEBRBFERISG 2 LTEBFREHRB R
B35 N F{E 518 4713,400,0007 7T °

EERERARELRBRATEZRT ZEE
BEFERSIUGHEEBEZE M

BARFE-H RREERERHZE

ERBEE EXRBEETREEER
REMEAZRR -



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 31 December 2018, Esteem Sun Limited (“Esteem Sun”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Lucent Time Limited (“Lucent
Time”), an independent third party, entered into the share transfer
and loan assignment agreement, pursuant to which (i) Lucent Time
conditionally agreed to sell, and Esteem Sun conditionally agreed
to acquire, the entire issued share capital of Noble Realm Limited
and (ii) Lucent Time conditionally agreed to assign and Esteem Sun
conditionally agreed to assume all rights and benefits of the interest free
shareholder’s loan, at an aggregate consideration of HK$135 million.
The acquisition was completed on 15 January 2019. Further details of
the acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 31
December 2018 and 15 January 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or
disposal (including the acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

(i)  On 30 May 2018, the Company entered in to a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to place, through the placing agent on a best efforts
basis, up to 1,452,000,000 placing shares at the placing price of
HK$0.07 per placing share under a general mandate granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
1 June 2017, to not less than six placees, who were independent
professional, institutional or other investors and who and whose
ultimate beneficial owners were independent third parties. The
placing was completed on 25 June 2018 and the net proceeds
were approximately HK$99.3 million, which were intended to be
used for developing the money lending business of the Group and/
or enhancing its general working capital. As at 31 December 2018,
the proceeds of HK$45 million had been utilized for the money
lending business of the Group as intended. In January 2019,
the use of proceeds of HK$30 million was changed to settle the
refundable earnest money for a potential acquisition with the view
of the Group's long term development and investment strategy
and the remaining proceeds of approximately HK$24.3 million
had been utilized for the money lending business of the Group as
intended.
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(i)  On 31 August 2018, the Company entered in to a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent on a best
efforts basis, up to 1,452,000,000 placing shares at the placing
price of HK$0.101 per placing share under a general mandate
granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 1 June 2018, to not less than six placees, who
were independent professional, institutional or other investors and
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent third
parties. The placing was completed on 27 September 2018 and the
net proceeds were approximately HK$143.5 million, which were
intended to be used as to (i) approximately 90% for financing the
future potential investment opportunities; and (ii) approximately
10% for enhancing its general working capital of the Group. As
at 31 December 2018, the proceeds of HK$67 million had been
utilized for payment of refundable deposit for an acquisition of a
subsidiary as intended. In January 2019, the proceeds of HK$68
million had been utilized for settlement of the consideration of the
aforesaid acquisition as intended and the remaining proceeds of
approximately HK$8.5 million had been utilized for enhancing the
Group’s working capital as intended.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not conduct any other fund
raising activities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no significant fluctuation
in the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars and US dollars whereas
Renminbi had a downward adjustment, resulting in an exchange loss
of approximately HK$20.9 million recognised as other comprehensive
expense of the Group. The Group will take a prudent approach against
any impact arising from the fluctuation in exchange rates but currently
is not engaged in any derivative activities and not committed to any
financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet exposure.

EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 67 staff (2017: 62 staff). The
total staff cost incurred for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$35.6 million (2017: approximately HK$34.3 million).
The remuneration of employees was determined with reference to
the qualification and experience of individual staff member, market
circumstances and the Group's performance. In accordance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), the staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function have adequate training programmes and budget.
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Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 22 May 2012 (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to Directors
(including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors), employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, no options were granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
27 May 2019 to Monday, 3 June 2019 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify to be
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held on Monday, 3 June 2019, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 May 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee currently comprises Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and
Mr. Liu Tonghui, the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company. A summary of duties and works of the Audit Committee is set
out in the “"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control
and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
in conjunction with the Company's external auditor, ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with
deviation from code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and C.2.5. Details of the
Company’s corporate governance are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining the
Group's risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and for reviewing the effectiveness of such on
an annual basis under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholders’ value and safeguard shareholders’
interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles emphasize
a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to
shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting shareholder value
and investor confidence.

The CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance and two levels of corporate
governance practices:

(@) code provisions which listed issuers are expected to comply with or
to give considered reasons for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed issuers
are encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices as
set out in the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for
the deviations from code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and C.2.5 which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to
review its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest developments
of the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors should
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.
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The Board sets policy direction and approves strategies/operational plans
to ensure effective functioning and growth of the Company, in the
interests of all shareholders.

Every director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/her duty in
good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including: the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board'’s procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the executive directors and the senior
management to discharge its responsibility.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and to
the exercising of independent judgment.

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises three
executive directors, one non-executive director and three independent
non-executive directors. Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report, members of the Board do not
have any relationship with any other director.
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The list of all directors and their biographies are set out under the
section of “Corporate Information” and “Biographical Details of
Directors” on page 2 and page 35 respectively and in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director for his independence pursuant to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 and
other requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience and skills,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functions. Independent non-executive directors are invited to
serve on the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the
Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors. Details of the Nomination Committee and its
works performed during the year are set out in the “Board Committees”
section below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.

17

EEERBRE

PREEVXRERFBECZRED BIENE2
BRFEEZ[REEH]IRIEEREF
5] ZE R BARDBRE _ETR AR
22— EBA -MACERMERE LT
AR RRE L IERTTEEHH -

FRN EFR-ENALTRAUNEHEZESR
PERFUFRTEFEZIRE (ED—2F
VIATEFTABABEEXRERA G
HEMBEREXME) -

ARARERESEBYIFATESETRELT
BRAIE3 MG E 2 B 85l R E M
REBRRZBIENBFRERBL - NAFR
BOREBELETRAZEBISMES 288
VERTEEEBRIAL

PREF(BRBUFATEST)RESER
HREZME 8 2 EMHEREZRIT - A#E &
BEEREE UMEFEEERARES B E
BHBRE - B FITEFTREAR AR AR
tREBe REZESNFMEESER-

ESCZERE BEERER

ARBIEHEFZZE BEERBRZERF
REBHARRB z AR -IREREES
BERMNEFRZEN BELREEBRE
EREEEEZHBARRF BEREFCRE
REEABIARFEBLIFNTEZTZE
V- REZEERENFAZ TIEFHBEH
RTIX[EEZEe] -

RBARBZABMA NRAR2BESAE
RIB=ZFHESE X MARBRKZE
REBEEZTRAEREMEZR E2EM
HMEFTRERXZETRZBERAERAS L
BEXRRER-



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

In accordance with clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chen
Wei, Mr. Fan Jie and Mr. Ru Xiangan shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Pursuant to requirement in code provision A.6.1, each newly appointed
director should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment. Subsequently he or she should receive any briefing
and professional development necessary to ensure that he or she has a
proper understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities and
obligations under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

The Board recognises the importance of directors’ training and all
directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, all directors have participate in continuous
professional development by attending training courses and/or reading
reference materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations:
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Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
relevant to the
Reading regulatory business or
updates director’s duties
HEEHEER
EEZHEN
MEEEREZ ERERE
EHER WHg g5

Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. Wang Yingqian (Chairman) FTHRTaE(FE) v 4

(Appointed on 19 June 2018) (R=ZF—-NENA+NLHEZIF)
Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Liu Wei (Chief Executive Officer) RIE L (TTHAEE) v 4
Mr. Chen Wei BRIELAE v 4
Mr. Fan lie g v 4
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) =5 E (FIFE) v 4

(Resigned on 19 June 2018) (R=ZF—=NFNAFNHEF)
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Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
relevant to the
Reading regulatory business or
updates director’s duties
HEBBERS
EZREN
MEEEREZ ExRERE
BHER Wie &3
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Ru Xiangan HMEREE 4 4
Mr. Liu Haiping ZBREE 4 4
Mr. Liu Tonghui 2L v 4
MEETINGS 23
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance SR HEEHERSE

During the year, reqular Board meetings were held for reviewing and F R EBEBERITHTEZE  Uigsd &t
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering M MEERIT  TE R NIERRF Z
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. ZERMABR ZFRTELZTEILRE
Most important resolutions agreed in Board meetings were made by ZRFBRHGLEHDESE (BIFEHNTT IEH
all directors including executive, non-executive and independent non- 1T MBI IEHMITEE)IEH -

executive directors.
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TEEREWE

The attendance records of each director at the meetings of the HFRN KEEFARETAE - BEEH EitE
shareholders, the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration EB&@ HHMEZES - IEXZEGNHITEZE
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee & (FE¥EaBeemL) ez MALE
(for corporate governance functions) during the year are set out below: ROERINT :
Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
B/ RERLEZEE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive
Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors ESpZ BE 2R BiZEe HMZEE R¥EZEE  HMZEE
(Note)
(B
Non-Executive Director FYTES
Ms. Wang Yinggian (Chairman) TETRT(ZE) ) 5/5  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
(Appointed on 19 June 2018) (RZF-NF TER TER TER TEA
NATAAEZE)
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Liu Wei (Chief Executive Officer)  BIB% 'k (77 H# %) 13 9/10  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 17
TER TER TER
Mr. Chen Wei RELE 3i 10/10  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 17
TER TER TER
Mr. Fan Jie BEEE 33 10/10  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 17
TER TER TER
M. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) 2HEE(FLE) 111 4/5  Not Applicable 22 22 Not Applicable
(Resigned on 19 June 2018) (R=F-/1F TEH TEH
NATAAER)
Independent Non-Executive BUkyrES
Directors
Mr. Ru Xiangan MEREE 13 8/10 10 22 212 Not Applicable
TEA
Mr. Liu Haiping ABRRE 13 210 ) 10 12 Not Applicable
TEA
Mr. Liu Tonghui AvEraE 23 9/10 22 21 212 Not Applicable
TEA
Note: Among meetings of the Executive Committee, one meeting was held for the War: RETZEBgrzgmb A X2ZNHETT

purpose of performing the corporate governance duties and the attendances of
the members of the Executive Committee at this meeting is disclosed under the

CG Code

20

by &y
INE

CEERBAMSBT RITERER
#HZBERERBEETRIHE -

Bk B S 1t



EEEEZERERAT 2018F 3

Corporate Governance Report

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Due to various work commitments, one executive director
namely, Mr. Liu Wei and two independent non-executive directors
namely, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Ru Xiangan were unable to attend the
special general meeting held on 17 August 2018 and one executive
director namely, Mr. Liu Wei and three independent non-executive
directors namely, Mr. Liu Haiping, Mr. Liu Tonghui and Mr. Ru Xiangan
were unable to attend the special general meeting held on 16 October
2018.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chairman and the Company Secretary attend almost all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable period of
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction which
involves a material conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a director will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting and independent non-executive directors who,
and whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction are
present at the Board meeting.
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The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting (nor be counted in the quorum) at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Tan Xiangdong
(a former chairman and a former executive director) on 3 April 2017,
the position of the chairman of the Board was vacant. Subsequently on
19 June 2018, Ms. Wang Yinggian was appointed as a non-executive
director, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. At the same date, Mr. Liu Wei, an executive director of the
Company, was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company
and the chairman of the Executive Committee. Thereafter and as at the
date of this report, the Company has met code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Executive Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. Save for the
Executive Committee, the terms of reference of the other Board
committees are made available to shareholders on the websites of
the Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(http://www.cbgroup.com.hk) respectively.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ru Xiangan.

Among the committee members, one of them possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is
a former partner of the Company's existing external auditors.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor (if
any) or external auditors before submission to the Board;

e To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms
of engagement, their independence and objectivity, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; and

e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to review the
half-yearly and annual financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the Company’s internal control
and risk management review and processes and the re-appointment of
the external auditors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under the
section “Meetings” in this report.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one non-executive director,
namely Ms. Wang Yinggian and all three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui.
The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Wang Yinggian.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:
e To review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make

recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

e  To develop and formulate relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors and senior management;

e  To identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors and
senior management;

e To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of and succession planning for directors and senior

management; and

e To assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships and senior management
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and made recommendations to the Board in accordance with the
Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee considers that board appointments are based on merit and
candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr.
Liu Tonghui. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ru
Xiangan.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the individual
performance and the operating results of the Company as well as the
market conditions and practice.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination or making
recommendation of the annual remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management and other related matters
when needs arise. The Human Resources Division is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Board about these recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year to
review the remuneration packages of the directors and the senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Liu Wei, Mr. Chen Wei and Mr. Fan lJie. The
Chairman of the Executive Committee is Mr. Liu Wei.

The Executive Committee has been conferred upon with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group and
has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the corporate
governance duties including but not limited to:

o to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management of the
Company;

o to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the directors and
employees;

o to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

During the year, the policies of the corporate governance of the
Company were reviewed by the Executive Committee.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 14(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 are set out in note 14(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made on all directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model

Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view and that relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management of the Company provides such explanation and
information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Company
which were put to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on page 49.

An analysis of the remuneration of the Company’s auditors, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out as
follows:

EEHRERVBHRRAEZERR

EXREAREARBABE_T—N\F
TA=ZT - HALFENPBERR2BE -

EXZAREEREARAMBHmR ZBRE
NHERZEFVBHRRASEER T ULFE
BRZERERERZ @R

ARBEEENESZRIEHMERLER A
BEEREURETEFTRUEZIALRF
AR RN EITHE 27 HE -

5B 4% B

BRARRBINE AL AN R E AR B B
WR < ARBAEMELNBRATNFI98 2
B BEN RS ] -

BE_T-)\FT_A=1t—BULHFE XK
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BT S B D AT E ST

Fee paid/
payable

for services
rendered
BEBRKEHN
EAHNEAR
HK$'000

FHET

ZBURTS
oh 82 B AR 7%

Audit services
Interim review services
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems. The systems and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group. Business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with their respective units. The results of evaluation will
be reported to management through regular internal meetings. Each
year, management prepares the risk assessment report listing the risks
identified and management’s assessment on the impact to the Group.
The Board discusses findings in the risk assessment report and evaluates
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system in
Board meeting. The Board also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems on a regular basis to
ensure that the systems in place are adequate.

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

e  the organisational structure is clearly defined with distinct lines of
authority and control responsibilities;

e a comprehensive financial accounting system has been established
to provide for performance measurement indicators and to ensure
compliance with relevant rules;

o the senior management shall prepare annual plans on financial
reporting, operations and compliance aspects by reference to
potential significant risks;

o unauthorised expenditures and release of confidential information
are strictly prohibited;

o specific approval by executive director prior to commitment is
required for all material matters; and

e the management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.
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The Group handles and disseminates inside information with due care.
Staff is required to comply with the confidentiality terms inside the
staff manual. Only personnel at appropriate level can get reach of price
sensitive and inside information. The Company regularly reminds the
directors and employees about compliance with all policies adopted by
the Company regarding inside information including the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules in relation to dealings in
securities of the Company.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established
to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

Under the code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group should have
an internal audit function. However, due to the size of the Group and
for cost effectiveness consideration, the Group currently does not have
an internal audit function. Instead, the Audit Committee is responsible
for a review on the internal control system annually. The review covers
major financial, operational controls in rotation basis and also the risk
management functions. No significant deficiency was identified under
current year’s review and the systems were operating effectively and
adequately. The Group continues to review the need for an internal
audit function annually.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of the Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ho Yu. He is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
of the Board from time to time. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During the
year, Mr. Ho undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’'s business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to make
a properly informed investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbgroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Bye-laws affecting its operations and
reporting practices.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene a special general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of
written notice. The same requirement and procedure also applies to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint
a representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.
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RIR HERERKRE

The Group is pleased to present its Environment, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
demonstrate its commitment to sustainable development in aspects of
environment, social and governance (the “ESG"). This ESG report is
prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “"ESG Reporting Guide"”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, which covers two subject areas, Environmental and
Social. Please also refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this
Annual Report for details of corporate governance of the Group.

The Group has complied with the “Comply or Explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group is engaged in (i) trading of electronic devices and other
commodities, (ii) the finance leasing business, (iii) the money lending
business, (iv) the brokerage business, (v) international air and sea freight
forwarding and the provision of logistics services, and (vi) trading of
securities. As set out in this annual report, the Group has transformed
its principal activities into the financial service sector. This ESG report
covers the Company and its major subsidiaries engaging in principal
business activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Use of Resources

Although the Group's principal businesses have no significant impact
on the environment, the Group recognises importance of environmental
sustainability and endeavours to minimize the impact of business
on environment through adopting numerous energy-saving and
conservation initiatives. The Group's policy is to ensure compliance
with applicable environmental laws and regulations and minimise its
environmental footprint through efficient use of resources and adoption
of pro-environmental management. The Group’s operation is mainly
office-based and its eco-friendly measures at the office are as follows:

o staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning in the
meeting rooms and computers at workstations when not in use;

e whenever possible, documents are handled electronically other
than physical papers;

e staff is reminded to save water;

e  staff is encouraged to reuse paper printed on one side and duplex
printing and copying. Data on printing and copying is regularly
reviewed to assess efficiency of paper usage;

o office supplies are recycled whenever possible; and

e conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings are arranged
where possible.
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Emissions, Environmental and Natural Resources

As the Group’s principal businesses do not involve any direct production
procedure, there is no direct emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharge of wastewater and discharges into land, production of
hazardous and non hazardous waste, etc.. The main contributor to the
Group's carbon footprint is the indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
from electricity consumption, which is mainly attributed to the use of
lighting system, air-conditioning and office equipment.

Taking into account the nature of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that its business operations have minimal direct impact on
the environment and natural resources. The Group is not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the reporting period.

The Group will continue to put more effort on resources saving and
strive for better protection of our environment.

Major resources consumption data for the year ended 31 December
2018 are as follow:

Total electricity consumption (kWh) 114,166
Total water consumption (cubic meter) 272
Total paper consumption (piece) 116,963

SOCIAL
Employment

The Group believes that employees are its greatest asset which is crucial
to its continuous development. The Group establishes and operates
prudent human resources policies and practices strictly in compliance
with law and regulations in respective jurisdictions where the group
entities are carrying on business. The Group updates and improves these
policies and practices regularly by taking into consideration the health
and well-being of its employees. All employees are kept abreast of any
updated policies and practices through internal memoranda.

The Group offers competitive pay and employee benefits to attract
talented staff and use a performance-based remuneration system to
motivate and reward them in line with their contributions to growing its
business. An employee’s remuneration is determined with reference to
performance and market benchmarks. Salary levels are not differentiated
by gender. Salaries and benefits are in accordance with local minimum
wages or above. All employees are treated fairly and equally, and their
rights and interests are protected.
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RIR HERERKRE

The Group provides and maintains various statutory benefits for its staff,
such as mandatory provident fund, medical and work injury insurance,
sick leave, funeral leave and maternity leave, etc. It regularly reviews
packages and career advancement opportunities, particularly for key
positions, to ensure continuing market competitiveness.

The Group establishes objective basis of key qualities and requirements
for candidates in its hiring processing and assess the suitability of the
candidate to avoid risks of discrimination or bias. Job openings are
also offered to all qualified employees with good work records, so as
to promote career advancement among employees as well. Consistent
criteria are applied to assess both internal and external candidates
regardless of age, sex, race, national origin or physical disabilities to
ensure fair judgment and avoid any risk of favoritism or discrimination.

All work are reasonably assigned and should be performed voluntarily
by employees, and fair and reasonable working hours are arranged to
respective staff in accordance with various job needs. All employees
may resign upon reasonable notice and should not be dismissed for
unreasonable grounds.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare during the reporting
period.

Health and Safety

Promoting the concept of a good work-life balance is essential to the
Group's philosophy for improved employee well-being. The Group
encourages its employees to advise the Group of any health and safety
issues in their workplace so that the Group can look at eliminating or
reducing the risk and finally the Group and the employees will all work
together to reduce health and safety risks to a minimum.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to the provision of a safe working environment and the
protection of employees from occupational hazards during the reporting
period.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to attend appropriate courses to
enhance their competence for performance improvement and career
development. They are encouraged to attend appropriate external
job-related courses or to acquire higher professional qualification to
enhance their competence and performance. All new employees are
briefed by the department heads to ensure the employees are aware and
familiarise themselves with the Group’s values and goals and to ensure
the employees understand their role in the Group.
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Labour Standards

The Group from time to time reviews its employment practice and
the Group’s guidelines on staff recruitment to ensure that it is in full
compliance with the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labour
Law in the PRC and other relevant labour laws and regulations in other
jurisdictions relating to, among other things, prevention of child labour
and forced labour.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to prevention of child and forced labour during the
reporting period.

Supply Chain Management

While the Group has established good relationships with its suppliers,
the Group also offers equal opportunity to all potential business
partners. Selection criteria such as, quality and price of products,
supplier’s reputation, background and experience are key factors to
the Group’s procurement decisions. Furthermore, the Group expects its
suppliers to strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is responsible for its products and services and does not
engage in unfair business activities of any kind. Fraud, misleading
information, or any acts that destroy customer confidence or infringe
customer rights are strictly prohibited. The Group has also strictly
complied with relevant products and services related regulations.

In particular, while collecting, processing and using personal data
of the Group’s customers in its financial service sector, appropriate
measures are taken to protect such data from unauthorised access and
abuse. Personal data is collected only for lawful and relevant purposes.
Employment contracts stipulate employees’ duty in safeguarding
confidential or sensitive information that they have had access to during
their employment.

All customers’ complaints will be considered, with corresponding follow-
up procedures being conducted in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines. Relevant investigation will be taken and settlement
may be made if appropriate, and improvement will be made whenever
necessary. The Group believes that complaints are a valuable opportunity
for it to obtain feedback from the community and customers, so as to
identify the need for service and policy improvement.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress during the reporting period.
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Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to uphold high standards on anti-corruption.
Adequate guidelines are implemented to ensure that all employees
(including directors) adhere to high standards of business and
professional and ethical conduct. All employees are encouraged to raise
any related concerns to the senior management in a strictly confidential
manner. Any matters of genuine concern are to be thoroughly
investigated and actions will be taken accordingly.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Group is compliant
with all relevant anti-money laundering laws. The risk of establishing
relationships with individuals or organisations engaged in money
laundering or terrorism activities are minimised by its ‘know your
customer’ and assessment processes. The Group has robust internal
control procedures in place to provide reasonable assurance against
fraud.

The Group holds licences or approval required for the provision of
money lending services, finance leasing services and regulated activities
under the SFO. The management supports a culture of integrity,
zero tolerance of bribery and ensures that business is conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering during
the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group is fully aware of the importance of interacting with the wider
community in fulfilling corporate social responsibility.

The Group has been eager to take initiatives in making cash donations
to charitable organizations and supporting the local communities and
neighbors.

The Group would explore the possibility of finding suitable partners and
contributing to community and environmental protection programmes
which facilitate positive changes. The Group would also from time to
time encourage its staff to support community service activities.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Non-executive Director

Ms. Wang Yingqgian (Chairman), aged 55, has been appointed as
non-executive director of the Company since June 2018. She holds a
bachelor degree of Economics from Renmin University of China (
B ARKXE) and a qualification of intermediate economist issued by
Ministry of Personnel of the People’s Republic of China (FRZE AR
MBI AEE) . Ms. Wang worked in Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Beijing Municipal Branch (Bl T #R{7dL R 5 17) from
1985 to 2006 and was the deputy general manager of its corporate
banking department from 2005 to 2006. She worked in Bank of
Communications Beijing Municipal Branch (@17t = 5 17)
from 2006 to 2016 and served as its vice president from 2010 to 2013
and was a director of Bank of Communications Financial Leasing Co.,
Lid. (RIS RBEBFREFE2AA]) from 2010 to 2012. For the period
from April 2017 to March 2019, Ms. Wang was an executive director
of Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2322). She has
also been appointed as the supervisor of Fortunes United International
Leasing Co., Ltd. (BInHiA& R mMEMHEESR AR, a company
established in the People’s Republic of China since March 2016 and
an independent director of ABC Life Insurance Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (Stock Code: 1288) since March
2018. Ms Wang has over 30 years of experience in the commercial
banking industry and have extensive experience in project management
and financing.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Wei (Chief Executive Officer), aged 46, has been appointed
as executive director of the Company since February 2016. He
graduated from Renmin University of China (FREIARKZE)in 1996
with a degree in economics and further completed postgraduate course
in international economics from Renmin University of China (B A
R KE)in 2000. From 1996 to 2014, Mr. Liu worked in various roles
at Bank of Communications, Beijing Branch (@17 XM 5 17)
including as a manager at the international trade department and
the credit department, the head of the investment banking division
of Beijing Branch, and the manager of a sub-branch. During Mr. Liu’s
tenure at Bank of Communications, Mr. Liu was mainly involved in
international trade settlement, local and foreign currencies loans,
personal, corporate and inter-bank financing and investment banking
businesses, and was a committee member of Beijing branch’s credit
committee and innovation business committee. Since June 2014, Mr. Liu
has been with Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd* (FF REEBR (=5
AR AT (“Zhongrong Trust”) as executive president in charge of its
trust investment department, with responsibilities involving alternative
asset management, merger and restructuring in capital markets, sector-
specific funds, asset securitizations, structuring financing and other
businesses. Mr. Liu is also the director of several subsidiaries of the
Company.
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Mr. Chen Wei, aged 38, has been appointed as executive director
of the Company since February 2016. He graduated from Yunnan
University (ZF K2 ) with a degree in law in 2002 and further
obtained a master degree in law from Peking University (1t L AZ)
in 2012. Mr. Chen obtained his PRC law qualification in 2001 and
further obtained his PRC Certified Public Accountants qualification
in 2012. From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Chen worked as a legal counsel at
a state-owned enterprise located in Hangzhou. From 2004 to 2012,
Mr. Chen worked as a lawyer at a law firm located in Beijing and was
mainly involved in corporate legal affairs and litigation matters. Since
2012, Mr. Chen has been with Zhongrong Trust as the vice general
manager of the trust investment department and is mainly responsible
for project investment and management. Mr. Chen is the sole director
of Sungi Global Investment Co., Ltd, which holds 100,000,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 1.97% of the total
issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Chen is also the director of
several subsidiaries of the Company and is designated to oversee the
Company'’s risk control and compliance matters.

Mr. Fan lJie, aged 44, has been appointed as executive director of
the Company since January 2017. He holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration in Tsinghua University School of Economics
and Management and a Bachelor’'s Degree in International Economic
in Renmin University of China. Mr. Fan has over 20 years of experience
in strategic marketing and project management. He has been with
Zhongrong International Trust Company Limited* (AR EEE Rt AR A
7)) as the Managing Director of the Trust and Investment Department
since 2014. Mr. Fan was a corporate partner and the vice president of
the Strategic Marketing Division of Adfaith Management Consulting
Inc* (AL RIEFS R B EEIRAABRAF]) from 2009 to 2014 and an
assistant to the general manager for medical business in an enterprise
located in Jiangxi Province, the People’s Republic of China, from 2003 to
2005. In 2000 to 2002, he was appointed as the sales and distribution
officer of the Department of Medical System of an international
conglomerate. Prior to 2000, he worked as a marketing leader in the
Nanchang Office of a renowned food and beverage company for about
three years. Currently, Mr. Fan is the Managing Director of the Strategic
Development Department of the Group and the director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan, aged 50, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 2016. He holds an
Executive Master’'s degree of Business Administration in Tsinghua
University and a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting in North China
University of Technology. He is a certified public accountant in the
People’s Republic of China and have over 20 years of experience in
accounting and finance and over 10 years of experience in insurance.
He has been serving as the head of the audit department in Chang
An Property and Liability Insurance Limited* (R Z & TR BRE D
Al) (“Chang An") since 2014, prior to which he was appointed as the
general manager of the Zhejiang branch from 2013 to 2014 and the
general manager of the accounting department and the financial chief
from 2007 to 2013. Before joining Chang An, he served as the general
manager assistant in Beijing Zhongjing Surety Company* (1t # =R
FIEIRAA]) , the chief financial officer in Heng Tong Group* (135
&) , the deputy chief financial officer in Beijing Beichen Innovation and
Technology City Limited* (dt it REIFT® B A E]) , the financial
manager in San Jiu Auto Group* (ZJLAEEE AR AF]), and the
deputy financial chief in Beijing Building Materials Factory* (4t 5 iH
m R

Mr. Liu Haiping, aged 44, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He graduated from
Fudan University with a bachelor’s degree in international economics
law in 1997 and obtained a master degree in international trade
law from Bond University, Australia in 2005. He has over 20 years
of experience in the legal sector. During the period from July 1997
to March 2009, he had served as an associate and later a partner in
Beijing Jiancheng Law Firm (dbL R @i EZ MM EH5FT) . He joined Beijing
Dacheng Law Offices (JE R AKERMEHFT) in April 2009 and is
currently a senior partner of the firm. He is also the deputy executive of
the Banking Law Professional Committee ($R1T AR HEZ E€) under
the Beijing Lawyers Association (1t R AR E ) .

Mr. Liu Tonghui, aged 56, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in international politics and a master degree in
international relations from Tokyo International University in 1995
and 1997 respectively. He has over 20 years of extensive experience
in investment activities and business management. During the period
between 1997 to 1998, he served as the representative of Nippon
Howaito Cooperation* (A% H B XXX & #L) in China. He had
been working as the deputy general manager in each of Shouchuang
Longji Company Limited* (H &I E K x B R A7) from 1998 to
2004 and Huajian Dongfang Software Company Limited* (ZEZE )
AR ET AR from 2005 to 2008, respectively. He has been the
general manager of Tangshan Haigang Xingerui Company Limited* (&
UEBF AR ET AR since 2009 and the assistant president of
Unisplendour Corporation Limited * (¥ &M AR A R) since 2012,
which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000938).
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 54 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong), including a fair review of the Group's business, a discussion on
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial year and future development in the Company’s
business and analysis using financial key performance indicators, are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Message”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.
The above sections form an integral part of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and suppliers are keys
to its sustainable growth and development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing
quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its
suppliers.

Employees

Employees are crucial assets of the Group. The Group strives to
enhance employees’ sense of belonging and loyalty to the Group. The
Group provides a fair, healthy and safe workplace, promotes diversity,
provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also aims to commit resources to providing employment training and
development opportunities so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their skills and performance in their respective positions and
build up confidence and self-esteem. The Group also values and is open
to receiving feedback from employees with an aim to foster a good and
long-lasting relationship.
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Customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services in a
way that satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group
strives to enhance the relationship with customers by continuous
interaction and communication with customers so that the Group can
respond proactively to cater for customers’ needs. The Group has also
established procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to
ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner. During the year under review, the Group has maintained good
relationship with its customers.

Suppliers

The Group is also dedicated to developing a good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. The Group reinforces business
partnerships with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication
in a proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely
delivery. During the year under review, the Group has worked closely
with its suppliers and maintained good relationships with them.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company
is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In addition, the
Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong Company under Part 16
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and
therefore is subject to the relevant provisions under the Companies
Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including the
disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions therein.

Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose
price sensitive or inside information.
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The Group is principally engaged in (i) trading of electronic devices
and other commodities, (ii) the finance leasing business, (iii) the money
lending business, (iv) the brokerage business, (v) international air and
sea freight forwarding and the provision of logistics services, and (vi)
trading of securities, in Hong Kong, the PRC and other jurisdictions, and
therefore is subject to the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
the PRC and other jurisdictions where the Group entities are carrying on
businesses.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's securities during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Wang Yinggian (Chairman)
(Appointed on 19 June 2018)
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Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Wei (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen Wei

Mr. Fan Jie

Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman)
(Resigned on 19 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan
Mr. Liu Haiping
Mr. Liu Tonghui

In accordance with clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chen
Wei, Mr. Fan Jie and Mr. Ru Xiangan shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is
the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are still independent.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the directors and chief executives,
nor their associates, had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTIONS
2012 Share Option Scheme

The 2012 Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
on 22 May 2012 (the "Effective Date”). The purposes of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme are to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentives or rewards to employees, directors,
consultants, business associates and advisers of the Company for their
contribution to the Company and to promote our success. The 2012
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the Effective Date. The terms of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

Eligible participants of the 2012 Share Option Scheme include the
following persons:

(@) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(b) any directors, non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest;

(d) any customer of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(f) any shareholder of or holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest;

(g) any other group or classes of persons or entities from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed or may contribute
to by way of joint venture, business alliances or other business
arrangements to the development and growth of the Group; and

(h) any company wholly owned by one or more person belonging to
any of the above (a) to (g) participants.
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The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Effective Date (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) or the date of refreshing the Scheme Mandate Limit approved
by shareholders of the Company in general meeting. The maximum
number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options which may be
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief
executive or director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (as defined under the
Listing Rules), are subject to approval by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is the grantee of the options). Where any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) would result in the Company'’s shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person(s) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant (a) representing in aggregate over 0.10 per cent of the
Company'’s shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of options is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in compliance with the
Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by a
participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Board, which period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of offer.

As at the date of this report, no share options are outstanding under

the 2012 Share Option Scheme. The remaining life of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme is approximately 3 years.
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The following table discloses movements of the share options under the
2012 Share Option Scheme during the year:

TREB T ERREH B TR
HER 2 2E

Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise asat  Granted during Exercised during  Lapsed during as at

Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.1.2018 the year the year the year 31.12.2018

R=E-N% R=E-N%

-B-8H +ZA=t+-8

RHAH Gd ] e B FREH FRTR FEREH B

Director 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030 10,034,030 - - (10,034,030) -
EF —%-1f “2-1ftATtRE
tA+tH ZZ-NELATRA

Ex-Director 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 0 16.7.2018 0.30 8,034,030 - - (8,034,030) -
GRS “T-nF “Z-RELATHHEE
tAt+tA ZE-\FLATRE

Employees 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 0.30 61,934,030 - - (61,934,030 -
(3] —Z-1f E-RELATLHE
tAt+tR Z2-N\ELATiA

Consultants 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 0 16.7.2018 0.30 138,000,000 - - (138,000,000) -
i ZZ-1f “R-DELATLRE
tA+tH ZZ-NELATRA

Total 218,002,090 - - (218,002,090) -

&3t

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director
of the Company or an entity connected with a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the directors of the
Company had any interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
following persons other than the directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the Company's shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which
have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, were as follow:
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BEER

BE-F—/\F+-A=+—BLEERN"
BETURGEABAR AR BEB LM
AEABDEH 2 ERRITHZAN

TERRzZROERERESDH
ZRR

R-F—N\F+-A=+—8 UTEEA
T (UHARAEEREBTHAR)RA
2B BRAA B AR 1B 3 5 T B A1) S XV
BE2REIDBEAS X ARBRRAD
FUR I8 38 % B B S ) 283361417 B 2 B A2
A ioeE 2 Mz AR T -

Percentage of
the Company'’s

Name Capacity Interest in shares issued share capital
RN

z8 30} B3 = BRTREABSL

Xie Zhikun (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 897,710,000 17.66%

e R (M5t1) gt NGIE: £

Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 897,710,000 17.66%
(Note 1) TR A

hECEEERRRAR (PHEE)

Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Interest in a controlled corporation 897,710,000 17.66%
Management Co., Ltd.* (Note 1) SRS D AR

FERE (ER)EFERERAF
(FEzE1)

Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 800,000,000 15.73%
(Note 1) ek UNGIE £

FERBEREBRAR (K1)

Silver Venus Investments Ltd. Beneficial Owner 800,000,000 15.73%

("Silver Venus") (Note 1)
(BF&ET)

ERZBEA
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Notes:

(1) 800,000,000 Shares and 97,710,000 Shares are held by Silver Venus and Aquila
Global Investment Ltd (“Aquila Global”) respectively. Silver Venus is wholly owned
by LEBE®REBR AR (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), which is
in turn wholly owned by FiEM®EEEHBR AR (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd*). Aquila Global is wholly owned by £%& ( £/&)#&&EF L (BRAEE)
(Yunji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), a limited partnership
registered under the laws of the PRC, of which It RREIREERER A A
(Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is the general partner and
has 99% of the voting power. It R RIEHREEILHMR A A (Beijing Jingpeng
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is owned as to 40.50% by #&E& A& 12
AR AT (Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*). HEEEAZTEER A A
(Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) is wholly owned by it ¥ £ EH
PR 2 7] (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*). FRIE ™3 £ E B R A 7] (Zhongzhi
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*) is owned as to 76% by F/EREL (L F) EAEEH
PR 2 7] (Zzhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*), which is
in turn wholly owned by Mr. Xie Zhikun (B2 E$85c4 ) . By virtue of the SFO, each
of L/BRB{E1% & AR A A (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), REMEEE
AFRAA] (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*), F/8RE (L R)EXEEFR
‘A &) (Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) and Mr. Xie
Zhikun (R E 4854 ) is deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held
by Silver Venus, and, each of £%& (_ £/8)#& & F L (BRE) (Yunji (Shanghai)
Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), dt R ZIEHREE L BFR A A (Beijing
Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*), Z 8¢ & R E L HFR 2 A (Yanneng
Capital Management Co., Ltd.*), REGZEEEER AT (Zhongzhi Enterprise
Group Co., Ltd*), F/ERE (St ) EAEE AR AR (Zhonghai Shengfeng
(Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) and Mr. Xie Zhikun (FRE$E5L4E) is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held by Aquila Global.

(2)  The percentage is calculated on the basis of 5,084,283,133 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2018.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
year is as follows:

EEEEZEREMRAT 2018F 3K

Directors’ Report
EERHE

TEEFRHER

FR ARXERFPRHEBGEAKREHEE
BMERBREZERDRIEINMT

Percentage of the Group’s total

HEEEBAENES L
Purchases Sales
22 HEE
The largest customer BAEF - 52%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFEE - 86%
The largest supplier BAHER 69% -
Five largest suppliers in aggregate RAAEEREE 97% -

At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622,
Laws of Hong Kong) when the report of the directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period of the Group is set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

Following the resignation of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
("SHINEWING") as auditor of the Company on 20 July 2018, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA")_ was appointed as the auditor
of the Company on 29 August 2018 to fill in the vacancy following the
resignation of SHINEWING.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of the
Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA, the auditors of the
Company, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Liu Wei

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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ZHONGHUI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA BEST GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Best
Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 151, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Goodwill

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of goodwill for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance
of goodwill of approximately HK$42,600,000 as at 31 December
2018 and the impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$28,982,000 are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

—  Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

—  Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
(including revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth
rates and discount rates);

—  Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuer engaged by client;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for goodwill is
supported by the available evidence.

Loans and interest receivables, finance lease
receivables and promissory note receivable

Refer to Notes 22, 27 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of loans and interest receivables,
finance lease receivables and promissory note receivable for
impairment. These impairment tests are significant to our audit
because the balances of loans and interests receivables, finance
lease receivables and promissory note receivable of approximately
HK$405,522,000, HK$178,785,000 and HK$90,000,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2018 are material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based on
estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ii. Loans and interest receivables, finance lease
receivables and promissory note receivable
(Continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting loans limits and
loans periods to borrowers;

—  Assessing the transaction history with the borrowers;
—  Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
—  Assessing aging of the debts;

—  Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers, guarantors and
the value of collateral pledged;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the borrowers; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to credit risk
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for loans and
interest receivables, finance lease receivables and promissory note
receivable are supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at:
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http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/

auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong
28 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —ET—+F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FEx FHET
(Restated)
(#E5))
Turnover e 9 218,007 537,548
Revenue: s 10
— Trading of goods —BEEEMm 159,261 356,943
— Provision of international air and — R B R ==
sea freight forwarding services g EEERS 5,198 6,642
— Consultancy income from finance leases — g & & MU A 15,052 19,178
— Interest income from finance leases —REREFB KA 12,929 9,440
— Interest income from money lending —BERMEWA 24,043 32,103
— Brokerage commission and dealing income— & 42 & & E & WA 1,524 1,269
218,007 425,575
Operating costs: B
— Cost of trading goods sold —B5EnEEKAN (156,448) (349,675)
— Cost of providing international air and ~ — iR BBz
sea freight forwarding services g EERGKA (3.587) (4,696)
— Cost of providing brokerage and dealing — R4 42 N B & RIERA
services (1,044) (764)
(161,079) (355,135)
Other income H g A 12 6,199 13,372
Administrative and other expenses T R H A2 H (45,643) (39,542)
Staff costs EEKRAE (35,591) (34,332)
Realised loss on financial assets at RATFEFABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss CRMEECESEEBE 24 - (3.294)
Unrealised loss on fair value change on BRATEFABERZ
financial assets at fair value through CRMEEATFTEES
profit or loss KREIBEIE 24 (13,377) (1,624)
Share of losses of associates DR E R B E 1R — (2,183)
Gain on disposal of asset classified as held HEDEABIEHEZEEY
for sale & - 281
Gain on disposal of an associate o — A Q82 W - 29,420
Impairment loss on finance JEWREREREZ
lease receivable HEEE 22 (13,595) -
Impairment loss on goodwill AR EEE 20 (28,982) -
(Loss) profit before tax MRAFLAT (B18) & (74,061) 32,538
Income tax expense FriSfim X 15 (1,488) (8,013)
(Loss) profit for the year FABEE) &R 13 (75,549) 24,525
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For the year ended 31 December 2018# 2 =F—F+=ZA=+—HIFZ

2018 2017
=E-N\F —ET—+F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FER FHET
(Restated)
(=)
Other comprehensive Ht2m (ZH) WA
(expenses) income
Items that may be reclassified HEZAJ B 5
subsequently to profit or loss: Bazm 2 HE -
Exchange differences arising on MEGINEBRELE 2
translation of foreign operations VEHZ58 (20,935) 28,861
Share of other comprehensive income SR ERTZ
of associates H i 2mlA - 501
Items that will not be reclassified HET 8B EE
subsequently to profit or loss: B HE -
Fair value loss on financial assets at BAFESAEE2EmKRE
fair value through other ZEMEEQNTEES
comprehensive income (14,655) (1,095)
Translation reserve released upon HEBENRRFERZ
disposals of associates mEHE - 7,051
(35,590) 35,318
Total comprehensive (expenses) FRE2MH (X)) WALLRE
income for the year (111,139) 59,843
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: ATEEFER (EE) &
— owners of the Company —ARREEB A (75,533) 24,533
— non-controlling interests —IEERER (16) (8)
(75,549) 24,525
Total comprehensive (expenses) income LTEAEFEFR2E (XH)
for the year attributable to: LONCEE
— owners of the Company —RRBIHER A (111,122) 59,841
— non-controlling interests —JEIER (17) 2
(111,139) 59,843
(Loss) earnings per share Tk (BE)&F 17
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (BW) (1.80) 0.68
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As at 31 December 2018 R —FE—NF+—-A=4+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
—E-N\E§ —T—+F T+
+=A=+-8B +ZA=+—H —A—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E TERT FTAEL TEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(m=5) (&=5)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BER& 18 4,982 8,477 10,418
Intangible asset EVEE 19 811 811 811
Interests in associates N AN £ - - 85,143
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income Wz emEE 21 16,167 30,822 31,917
Finance lease receivables EREREREA 22 = 7,673 37,410
Loans receivables BT 27 55,000 - -
Deposit for acquisition of WE-—HNBARZES
a subsidiary 67,000 - -
Goodwill HE 20 42,600 71,582 -
Regulatory deposits EERS 1,705 1,705 -
Deferred tax assets BLERBEE 29 8,676 5,689 3,179
196,941 126,759 168,878
Current assets REEE
Finance lease receivables EURERETA 22 178,785 193,737 196,440
Loans and interest receivables BB R RFE 27 350,522 362,464 279,647
Trade and other receivables I LS BR 3R e L e FE MR FRIR 23 185,632 183,596 133,567
Promissory note receivable JEU A R R & 32 90,000 90,000 -
Financial assets at fair value BRFEFABRLZ
through profit or loss PREAE 24 3,003 16,380 115,266
Pledged bank deposit BEARITER 25 58 59 54
Bank balances and cash RITEHREASE
— trust and segregated accounts —EREBIERER 26 8,435 33,897 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHRAE
- general accounts ——REP 26 274,763 173,281 170,233
1,091,198 1,053,414 895,207
Assets classified as held for sale DEBBELNEZEE - - 10,760
1,091,198 1,053,414 905,967
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables & A5 AR 50 I L At B A+ RROR 28 43,902 66,245 23,404
Tax liabilities REAE 9,119 10,312 7,668
53,021 76,557 31,072
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MR R

As at 31 December 2018 R = ZE—NE+=-H=4+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January

2018 2017 2017

—E-N\E§ —E—+F —E—tF

+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H —A—H

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

k3 TERT FTEL FTET

(Restated) (Restated)

(leE5) (feE5)

Net current assets RBEERE 1,038,177 976,857 874,895

NET ASSETS EEFE 1,235,118 1,103,616 1,043,773

Capital and Reserves BARRE

Share capital PR 30 508,428 363,228 363,228

Share premium and reserves W10 & E R 726,748 740,429 680,588
Equity attributable to owners of ARRHE AEGRER

the Company 1,235,176 1,103,657 1,043,816

Non-controlling interests FERER (58) (41) (43)

TOTAL EQUITY R 1,235,118 1,103,616 1,043,773

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 151 were S4B ZFIS1BZHGAPTBHREREN=-Z
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 —AFZA -+ N\BEEZHIERRE

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: HE AR TIRKREE:
Liu Wei Chen Wei
2l1& R 12
Director Director
- 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEnBER

For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Translation Statutory options  revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
Bx RBEE  BARR  BREEE  iTRE  BERERE REERREE  ZnER Nt FERESR a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn FiEn FiEn ThEn Thn Thn Thn
(Note i) (Note ii)
(W) (Wisil)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-f-H 363,228 907,653 1,996 (48,978) - 22,745 (1,213) (219,745) 1,025,686 (3) 1,025,643
Effect of changes in SHERTH T E
accounting policies (note 2) (HW#2) - - - - - - (12,620) 30,750 18,130 - 18,130
At 1 January 2017 (@s restated)  R=F—tF-A-R
(@&3)) 363,228 907,653 1,99 (48,978) - 22,745 (13,833) (188,995 1,043,816 @3) 1,043,773
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - 2533 24,533 ) 24,525
Other comprehensive income ~~ EAEH2ERA (i) :
(expense) for the year:
Exchange differences arising ~~ REBNEBBEL L

on translation of foreign EizE

operations - - - 28,851 - - - - 28,851 10 28,861
Fair value loss on financial BATEHAEMZE

assets at fair value through Y eHEEY

other comprehensive income  AF(ERE (FE3)

(restated) - - - - - - (1,095) - (1,095) - (1,095)
Translation reserve released HERANAERR

upon disposal of associates BERE - - - 7,051 - - - - 7,051 - 7,051
Share of other comprehensive  AEEEAF Al

income of associates 2ERA - - - 501 - - - - 501 - 501
Total comprehensive income ~~ ERZEMA (1) 8%

(expense) for the year - - - 36,403 - - (1,095) 24,533 59,841 2 59,843
Transfers to statutory reserve ~ EAZFERE - - - - 3,908 - - (3,908) - - -
Forfeiture and lapse of BRERMRAN

share options (note 31) (Ma31) - - - - - (17,378) - 17378 - - -
At 31 December 2017 (restated)  H=F—+%

TZRA=1+-R(&%3]) 363,228 907,653 1,996 (12,575) 3,908 5367 (14,928) (150,992) 1,103,657 (1) 1,103,616
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 20188 £ =&

mEEREHR

—NEFZA=F—AULEE

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Translation  Statutory options revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
Bx  ROBE  BARS  REEE  iEEE BREGE REERRE  ZHER Nt FERER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Thn Tin Tin Tin TEn TEn Thn
(Note i) (Note ii)
(W) (W)
At 1 January 2018 RZF-N\E-A-B 363,228 907,653 1,996 (12,575) 3,908 5,367 (438) (181,742) 1,087,397 (41) 1,087,356
Effect of changes in accounting ~ SFHREH 25
policies (note 2) (M2) = - - - - - (14,490) 30,750 16,260 - 16,260
At 1 January 2018 (as restated)  R=F—-\E—-F-B
(@%3)) 363,228 907,653 1,996 (12,575) 3,908 5,367 (14,928)  (150,992) 1,103,657 41) 1,103,616
Loss for the year ERER = = = = = = - (1553) 16 (15549
Other comprehensive expense  £AEH2ERE
for the year:
Exchange differences arisngon ~ E N EBBEE L
translation of foreign operations  E X =8 - - - (20,934) - - - - (20,934) 1) (20,935)
Fair value loss on financial assets  EATFEFAEMH2E
at fair value through other Wi eREEL
comprehensive income NTEEE - - - - - - (14,655) - (14,655) - (14,655)
Total comprehensive expense  ER2ENHEE
for the year - - - (20,934) - - (14,655) (15533)  (111122) (17 (111,139
Issue of shares upon placement B EHRHELTRG
of new shares (note 30) (M330) 145,200 103,092 - - - - - - 248,29 = 248,292
Transaction cost attributable to ~ ETHRAE 2
issue of new shares ZHHE - (5,651) - - - - - - (5.651) - (5,651)
Lapse of share options (note 31)  BREXM (Hi31) - - - - - (5,367) - 5,367 5 - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
T-A=t-8 508,428 1,005,094 1,996 (33,509) 3,908 - (29,583) (221,158) 1,235,176 (58) 1,235,118
Note i: The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between Miski: AEBZHARBIEBEARARMR—NANRE
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the EEBHERIIARRE ([BAFT]) R E
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company's shares on the Main Board MR RBESBAMBEHRE AR 2 RHEEHA
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 1996 EARMBETZARRARNEB L Z5 -
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange.
Note ii: In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”) Company Law K #Eii : RIEFEARLME ([FE]) R FHERFEH

and the PRC subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, a subsidiary registered in
the PRC, prior to any dividend distribution, is required to appropriate 10%
of its annual statutory net profit as determined in accordance with relevant
statutory rules and regulations applicable to enterprises established in the PRC
(after offsetting any prior years' losses) to the statutory reserve. When the
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior
years' losses or to increase capital. However, such balance of the statutory
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after such
usages. The balance is reclassified to retained earnings at the date of disposal
of the subsidiary.
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GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
(Loss) profit before tax BrELAT (E518) Jm A (74,061) 32,538
Adjustments for: MTIIEEEH AR
Depreciation of property, ME BEREZETE
plant and equipment 3,629 3,658
Share of losses of associates SR A RER - 2,183
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE ME#HZ
plant and equipment &8 - 44
Unrealised loss on fair value change RATER AERE
on financial assets at fair value ZEMEEZATE
through profit or loss B s KSR EBE 13,377 1,624
Write-off of property, MY BRE R
plant and equipment 1 58
Interest income from bank, overdue REWRIT B
trade receivables and promissory A M B8R T % L
note receivable ZBRZMEBA (6,059) (5,372)
Gain on disposal of asset classified HESEARBIELEZ
as held for sale BEWE - (281)
Write-off of other payable Jlt 87 EL b FE S SRR - (7,240)
Gain on disposal of an associate o — B A R 2 s - (29,420)
Government grant BT #68 B (3) (6)
Impairment loss on finance lease W mERERIEAZ
receivable A EE 13,595 -
Impairment loss on goodwill mEzREEE 28,982 -
Operating cash flows before movements  &E&E & A2
in working capital RERERE (20,539) (2,214)
(Increase) decrease in trade and JE UG BR FR &% E b fE W R TE
other receivables (3 n) R (10,374) 43,046
(Increase) decrease in finance lease FElEEHERIA
receivables (3 0) R (1,152) 47,968
Decrease in financial assets at BRATEFAER
fair value through profit or loss ZEREERD - 97,293
Decrease in cash and Re RBITHEBRR D —
bank balances — trust and ErERBILEP
segregated account 25,462 7,168
Increase in loans and interest receivables  FEUZ B 2k & FI| 218 A0 (43,058) (82,817)
Decrease in trade and other payables FETBR R R H Ath
& A~ SRIEDRL (21,848) (16,970)
Cash (used in) generated from operations &% (FrfM)FFEAZR S (71,509) 93,474
Income tax paid 2T (5.879) (7,734)
NET CASH (USED IN) REX® (A FEEZ
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFEE (77,388) 85,740
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & —F—NF+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEETE
Interest received from bank, KEIRTT wH
overdue trade receivables and JIE ST BR 51 K% i Wi 3R
promissory note receivable EBRZERFE 6,059 1,126
Net cash outflow from acquisition WEEHE AR Z
of subsidiaries WemLFaE - (127,872)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HERIELEEEZ
assets held for sale WemAFE - 10,993
Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary g —HNB AR zi&ke (67,000) -
Net proceeds from disposal of HE—RHEE QR ER
interest in an associate FriS /I8 F 58 - 29,979
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE KEREZHEZ
plant and equipment Fr 5 5718 - 900
Purchase of property, BEYE BEREE
plant and equipment (178) (1,328)
NET CASH USED IN REZHFARE FHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (61,119) (86,202)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEER
Proceeds from placement of shares B 5 IR 19 P 18 kI8 248,292 -
Transaction cost attributable to the B 5 B 1 FE 1 22 5 P AR
placement of shares (5,651) -
Receipts of government grant BT 48 B WA 3 6
NET CASH FROM RMETBHFE2RSTHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 242,644 6
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RERAELEEBARZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #n O L) FEE 104,137 (456)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HAZBEK
AT 1 JANUARY Re%@EER 173,281 170,233
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — [ER& &)~ g2 (2,655) 3,504
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rt=-—A=t—-HZRER
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by RE&EEERB  NUETT
bank balances and cash HEHR LIRS AR 274,763 173,281
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GENERAL

China Best Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries (together with the Company
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied all the new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2018. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS(s)"),
amendments and Interpretations.

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements
except as stated below.

HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments”

Available-for-sale investments and held for trading investments
are now classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss, respectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) has been applied retrospectively and resulted in
changes in the consolidated amounts reported in the financial
statements as follows:

2.

%ﬁ%ﬂ&@%ﬂZé%%
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%
ZA])
ERVBBEEUEIR (=R
—mE) [€@IA] (&)
EEMBREERFER (—T—F)
BEWER WHERMERERZHRY
EASESBMT

As at As at

31 December 1 January

2017 2017

RZBE—+FE WHZZ—+F

+=A=+-8 —A—A

HK$000 HK$'000

FET F# T

Decrease in available-for-sale investments Al E IR E R D (14,562) (13,787)

Decrease in accumulated losses RETEER D 30,750 30,750

Decrease in investment revaluation reserve & & & & & i 2 (14,490) (12,620)
Increase in financial assets at fair value EAFEFAEMERRE 2

through other comprehensive income © A E LN 30,822 31,917

Decrease in held for trading investments FRER S| E R D (16,380) (115,266)

Increase in financial assets at fair value BERAFEFAEBERZ
through profit or loss © A E LN 16,380 115,266

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position, except as
described below:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations. The
new standard introduces a single accounting model for lessees.
For lessees the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to classify leases as
operating or financing leases.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group's leased premises are currently classified as operating
leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to
recognise and measure a liability at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-
use asset for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability
and amortisation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in
profit or loss. The Group's assets and liabilities will increase and the
timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 33, the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its leased
premises amounted to approximately HK$34,447,000 as at 31
December 2018. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group
anticipates that the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 in the future
will result in an increase in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
which is unlikely to have material impact on the Group's financial
position. The Group also anticipates that the net impact (as a
result of the combination of the interest expenses arising from the
lease liabilities and the amortization of the right-of-use assets as
compared to the rental expense under existing standard) on the
Group's financial performance will not be material.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set out
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) to exercise its judgements in the
process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its financial
statements using accounting policies other than those adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for like transaction and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are
made to that subsidiary’s financial statement in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Control is achieved when the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's return.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the result of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
incurred to effect a business combination are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the business combination
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes;

o assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of
the acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with the
share-based payment transactions of the Group are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another standards,
are measured at acquisition-date fair value except for non-
controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured either at fair value
or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets on
a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration that is within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured at
fair value at each reporting date, and changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9. Other
contingent consideration that is not within the scope of HKFRS 9 is
measured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair
value are recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period (see
above), the provisional amounts recognised at the acquisition date
are adjusted retrospectively or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised as of that date, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable

amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

—  the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment are established.
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For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Related Parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:
i has control or joint control over the Group;
ii.  has significant influence over the Group; or

iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

i.  The entity and the Company are members of the same

group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

ii.  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

iii.  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv.  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Related Parties (Continued)
(B) (Continued)

v.  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

vi.  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

vii. A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

viii. The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

Fiduciary activities

The Group maintains segregated accounts with authorised
institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal course of
the regulated business activities. The Group has classified the bank
balances — trust and segregated accounts within the current assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to respective clients and
other institutions on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group is not allowed to
use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations. The cash held
on behalf of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“"MPF”) Scheme, Central Provident
Fund ("CPF”) Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leaves and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment (classified as finance leases) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
plant and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Regulatory deposits

Regulatory deposits are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost;

-  Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income; and

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. On derecognition of an
investment, the cumulative gains or losses previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or

loss, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESITHE &)

(CONTINUED)
Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost
and the conditions of debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income unless the Group designates an
equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair values recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are net of any interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost and lease receivables. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or
services received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that it may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group's share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, value in use of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements into three
levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis
by reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Provision for current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such
determination is made.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$341,642,000 (2017: HK$296,177,000)
available for offset against future profits. The Directors make
estimates on the future profit streams of the Group entities of
which tax losses are not utilised. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 (note 29).

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets and if
the expectation differs from the carrying amount, such differences
from the carrying amount will impact the depreciation charges
in the year in which the estimates change. At 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$4,982,000 (2017: HK$8,477,000), net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss of approximately
HK$11,987,000 (2017: HK$8,523,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables and
promissory note receivable

The policy for impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables and promissory
note receivable of the Group are based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required. At 31
December 2018, the carrying amounts of trade receivables, finance
lease receivables, loans and interest receivables and promissory
note receivable were approximately HK$173,395,000 (2017:
HK$172,372,000), HK$178,785,000 (2017: HK$201,410,000),
HK$405,522,000 (2017: HK$362,464,000) and HK$90,000,000
(2017: HK$90,000,000) respectively, and net of allowance
for impairment of approximately HK$1,464,000 (2017:
HK$1,460,000), HK$35,195,000 (2017: HK$22,756,000), nil
(2017: nil) and nil (2017: nil) respectively.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$42,600,000
(2017: HK$71,582,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$28,982,000 (2017: nil). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 20.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEEERBHEEARANBEBRASEELR
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the BEARELE ANEBRBITEHRR
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and K & R AR R Bl AE AR K B 3R o AR ER [E B
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged BRBREFERSITE
from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash AEEEAEEREReRREEE
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, HEURERGHEB AELER (B
comprising issued share capital and reserves. ERBITIRARGEH)
The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. E=TFTHRNEREE ERARN 2 —
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital RBEEEBEAKANEZIEERNHE
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on BMzRB -RIBEZEEMEEBER X
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its SERBRERTITHREBITHETS
overall capital structure through new share issues as well as the HERBEREE
issue of new debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @I A
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAZER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(Restated)
(&==5))
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at fair value thought BRATEFABRZ
profit or loss — mandatorily measured CRAEAE—®HlIFIE 3,003 16,380
Financial assets at fair value through other R AF(EFFAHEMEZEKZEZ
comprehensive income TREE 16,167 30,822
Financial assets at amortised cost (including 1R R A EZ SR EE
cash and cash equivalents) (PEReRESFEER) 1,142,490 1,044,507
1,161,660 1,091,709
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHKATFEZEMAE 42,942 65,672
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include regulatory
deposits, trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
loans and interest receivables, promissory note receivable, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Other than the subsidiaries established in the PRC, Singapore
and the United States of America of which functional
currency is RMB, Singapore dollars (“SGD") and United
States dollars (“USD") respectively, the functional currency
of the Company and other subsidiaries is HK$. Certain
trade and other receivables and bank balances and cash
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities to which they relate. Foreign
currencies are also used to settle expenses for overseas
operations, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
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denominated monetary assets at the reporting date are as WEBCEABENT
follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
RMB AR 1,743 1,811
usD ETT 40,738 33,349
British Pound (“GBP") FEeE ([HEeE]) 401 424
Japanese Yen (“JPY") B ([Bx]) 357 347

89




China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for USD as HK$ is pegged
to USD.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is currently exposed to RMB, GBP and JPY foreign
currency risk.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
10% (2017: 10%) increase and decrease in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, HK$ or RMB,
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% (2017: 10%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 10% (2017: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates.

A negative number below indicates an increase in loss (2017:
decrease in profit) for the year where the respective functional
currency (HK$ or RMB) strengthens 10% (2017: 10%) against
the relevant foreign currency (RMB, GBP, JPY or HK$). For
a 10% (2017: 10%) weakening of respective functional
currency (HK$ or RMB) against the relevant foreign currency
(RMB, GBP, JPY or HK$), there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss (2017: profit) for the year and the
balances below would be positive.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. B EKMEEBEERBE

Notes:

(@) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on RMB bank
balances and cash at year end.

(b)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on GBP bank
balances and cash at year end.

(c)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on JPY bank

balances and cash at year end.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its bank balances at floating rate of interest so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposit (see note 25
for details), loans and interest receivable (see note 27 for
details), finance lease receivables (see note 22 for details) and
promissory note receivable (see note 32 for details).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Directors consider that the interest rate risk in relation
to variable rate bank balances is insignificant due to these
balances are either within short maturity period or the
outstanding balances are not significant.
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in listed equity securities.
The Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition, the
Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss had been 20% (2017: 20%) higher/lower, the
loss (2017: profit) after tax for the year ended 31 December
2018 would decrease/increase (2017: increase/decrease) by
approximately HK$502,000 (2017: HK$2,735,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of these investments.

If the value of the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income had been 20% (2017: 20%) higher/
lower, the investment revaluation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2018 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$3,233,000 (2017: HK$6,164,000 (as restated)) as a result
of the changes in fair value of these investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
representative of the other price risk for the investments in
listed equity securities as the year end exposure does not
reflects the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to a failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of finance lease receivables, representing loan advances
to customers with pledged assets, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s financial background, current ability to pay and the
financial status of the guarantor, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. At 31 December
2018 and 2017, the finance lease receivables are secured with the
leased assets. All the finance lease receivables are aroused in the
PRC.

In respect of loans and interest receivables, representing financing
advances to customers under the Group’s money lending business,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s financial background and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry in which customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. The Directors consider the credit risk
under control since the management exercise due care in granting
credit and check the financial background of these customers on a
regular basis.

For loan receivables, the Group has a high concentration of credit
risk on loans and interest receivables as 14% (2017: 15%) and
59% (2017: 68%) of the total loans and interest receivables was
due from the single largest customer and the five largest customers
in the money lending segment respectively.

For finance lease receivables, the Group has a high concentration
of credit risk on finance lease receivables as 41% (2017: 36%) and
92% (2017: 90%) of the total finance lease receivables was due
from the single largest customer and the five largest customers in
the finance leasing segment respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. ﬁﬁﬂffﬁﬂi BERBE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) %EE‘. a (48)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations are mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
99% (2017: 91%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December

REFHREERBEREEFRE
T% ETREEMRZRIT WRDER
ZEERBER - R_T—-N\F+=
A=+—8" $%IZ1EEEU@E£@
ﬁTﬁELIE%q:‘ﬁAq:‘. 1 & W B

2018. The Group has concentration of credit risk as 67% (2017: RBEZ799% (ZE—+EF:91%) °

64%) and 99% (2017: 97%) of the total trade receivables were $E.mef§ﬂ CMEFRESFAE
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest IE&EEK%}E 7R FEMBR KB RE 2
customers respectively. 67% (ZE—+EF:64% ) %99% (=

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

T—+F:97%) e

RREEERR AEEZEREEDE
k—/E - BEEEEERSE EEH
ZNGETTEMEERIEFr - ARERE BRER
BRAE S i WD B B A TR - LS RS
B EMESENE S ERNRE R
Z A Bl FE - ARERE LT RE M B &
BIERTERREBE -LtME EF
RB/AEREZEERR S KERE-

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase AEBEREMEENREABNZE
in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout %92 fex B R M) A T R ElHﬂZLi’JHFM
each reporting period by comparing the risk of a default occurring Nt emEEZERARBESR

as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following
information is used:

BERRNRIGEEEREE N $;‘%I
MERAFAEELAEBRIFF ZAE
HEER - LEFERTIER:

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, - BHERERABTEMTELD
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause MERNEB) 2 575 MIESEAN

a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its

MZEBERFAHERINES

obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results - BRAREEEZERNEHE
of the borrower; N

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial - FA—EZFAEMERIANEE

instruments of the same borrower;

— significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the
quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

— significant changes in the expected performance and

behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers.
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For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment, unless
the Group has supportable information which can demonstrate
otherwise. A default on a financial asset occurs when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments within 90 days when they fall due
and this debtor is unlikely to repay the amount due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises a
receivable for write off when the Group determine that the debtor
does not have assets or source of income that could generate
sufficient cash flow to repay the amounts subject to write-off.
Where receivables have been written off, the Group, if practicable
and economical, continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for loans and interest receivables,
finance lease receivables and promissory note receivable which
reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of the categories. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each category and
adjusts for forward looking data.

7.

o R ELIR IR B B R K

\ =)

EERK (&)

fisd 2 K & K 2 (B A B HI B 830
A - BIRE(E B RERAEE I BRIEAR
SEA A SERBRILIFL - HERS
ARBERFAH0OR AEE A NN KE
ZEBATKAIREEEBRNE BlE

MEELRED-

TREERAERHEAKE (FlanE
5 AR BN SR BE A B AT 1) Bl
o M ASKBEEEERALEEELIK
AR AL E £ B 53R &R (8 1 5
FORRS - AN E —RE M A B R R
TR o fid FE MR IR M E - AR E (£
ERAITRNAEBERE 2B T) 4
AB PR AR 58 11T B = B U 1= ) HA e K
I8 o

AEEBREERENEFIE BEM
ERWIA R EW AL ZE D BMIER
A Bl RRE R - & E R &
A MIELR R 2 BIEE - T E B
HEEBEXE AKEZEZRN
BEBEER U ARKBBETHE-

Category Definition Loss provision
B B2 BERE
Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
Rif B A @ P (K f 32 A5 B 5 1216 A 8 B g5 18
Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses
TR 15 FA [ P 7 3 3 0 2 HEHEE
Loans and Finance Promissory
interest lease note
receivables receivables receivable Total
EHRERR MERSE P&
MERHE FE R E AARE Fobay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET THERT THET
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\EF
TZA=T—HHOER 405,522 213,980 90,000 709,502
Loss allowance BRAE - (35,195) - (35,195)
Carrying amount RmEE 405,522 178,785 90,000 674,307
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BB REKREEEEREE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (#)
Credit risk (Continued) EERK (&)
Loans and Finance ~ Promissory
interest lease note
receivables  receivables receivable Total
W EFT & MEHE &
FEFRIA fE MR IE EAEE BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FAT
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF
+TZA=+—HN%EH 362,464 224,166 90,000 676,630
Loss allowance EBEEE - (22,756) - (22,756)
Carrying amount REHE 362,464 201,410 90,000 653,874
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEBER
2018 —E-N\F - 16% - 5%
2017 —E—tF - 10% — 3%

All of these receivables after loss allowance are considered to
have low risk and under the ‘Performing’ category because they
have a low risk of default and have strong ability to meet their
obligations.

The increase in loss allowance is due to increase in expected credit
loss rates

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management

monitors the utilisation of its bank balances and cash and considers
the risk is minimal.

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are repayable on

demand or within one year as at the end of each of the reporting
periods.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 8. AYEFE
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERA - ARERGRE RN
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the I eREERERAEREHEKA
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values due REREEUBmKR 2 REEREAT
to short-term or immediate maturities. BREE -
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREHBREEEEERSRESRR
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period UWAFEFEZEBIEST  BEX
for recurring measurement, grouped into Levels 1 or Levels 2 based SEEHBREBATEUERIEED
on the degree to which the fair value is observable in accordance HRE—BElE_fE-
with the Group’s accounting policy.
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2018: RZE—NEFE+_A=+—8BzZ2Ar¥
BEERZERHKE:
Fair value measurements using
FERAUTHABE 2L FETE
Level 1: Level 2: Total
g8 F-8: @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THERT FET
Recurring fair value measurements: EE M4 A FEE:
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAEBRZ
profit or loss EMEE
— Listed equity security —EmRAES 3,003 - 3,003
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAEMBEE
other comprehensive income WamzemEE
— Listed equity security —EmRAES 5,227 - 5,227
— Unlisted equity security — I LETRAES - 10,940 10,940
Total recurring fair value measurements £ F MR F(E =45 8,230 10,940 19,170
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8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 8. A¥EFE &)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2017 R_E—+FF+_A=F+—HZRF
(Restated): BELAHE (KEY) :
Fair value measurements using
FRATEAZBZ ATENE
Level 1: Level 2: Total
£—8: F8: mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
(Restated)
(g=z75))
Recurring fair value measurements: EE M4 A FEE:
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEF B2
profit or loss CREE
— Listed equity security —EmRAES 16,380 - 16,380
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAEMBEH
other comprehensive income WamzemEE
— Listed equity security —EmRAES 7,062 - 7,062
— Unlisted equity security —ELETRAES - 23,760 23,760
Total recurring fair value measurements £ F MR F(EF =45 23,442 23,760 47,202
Disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value NEEFEZHERNEEASE 2
measurements: 5
Level 2 fair value measurements FE-_EAFEE
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2018 2017
H1E fh B H M BWAHKE —E-N\F ZE—LF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets at fair Comparable Share price and
value through other Transaction Method marketability
comprehensive income discount 10,940 23,760
RATEFAEMEE AR FE P& (8 Ko h % il 1
Wz emEE g
There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy in RAFERBEFE  SRFEEEZ
the current and prior years. FE I A f T B A o
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TURNOVER 9. EXH
Turnover arises from (i) trading on radio system and electronic EEBFRENEEREGERZRHZLETH
appliance; (ii) provision of international air and sea freight mr (DREEEME RS FEERS
forwarding services; (iii) consultancy income in respect of finance (IEEMERE ZBEBRA (VA&
leases; (iv) interest income from finance leases; (v) interest income HERMBRA  WEEFBHRA (Vi)
from money lending; (vi) brokerage commission and dealing WEBEEASREBRA  Rvi)
income from brokerage business; and (vii) gross proceeds from HEEATEFABRECEMEERN
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. An SREBEHEE FAREEEER ZHN
analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows: O
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trading of goods BEEH M 159,261 356,943
Provision of international air and sea RHEERMZE G FEERS
freight forwarding services 5,198 6,642
Consultancy income from EEMHERMUA (FIEE)
finance leases (Note) 15,052 19,178
Interest income from finance leases (Note) ~ FREMEFI U A (M) 12,929 9,440
Interest income from money lending BEMBWA 24,043 32,103
Brokerage commission and dealing income &4 M4 M EZH U A 1,524 1,269
Gross proceeds from disposal of financial HERATEFABRZZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss CREEMSRIARRE - 111,973
218,007 537,548

Note: Pursuant to a debt settlement agreement and a loan agreement
both dated 1 March 2019, finance lease interest of approximately
RMB441,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$521,000) and consultancy
income of approximately RMB16,323,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,291,000) have been agreed by the parties to be waived. According
to these waived amounts, the Group's interest income from finance
leases and consultancy income from finance leases had been deducted
by approximately RMB379,000 (after value-added tax) (equivalent to
approximately HK$447,000) and approximately RMB14,009,000 (after
value-added tax) (equivalent to approximately HK$16,557,000) respectively
in the year ended 31 December 2018 while the remaining waived amounts
will be accounted for next financial year. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 1 March 2019.
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10. REVENUE 10. Wz
2018 2017
—E-N\E —TE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Revenue from contracts with P AW (M)
customers (Note) 181,035 384,032
Revenue from other source: KB E MR 2 W g
Interest income from finance leases BE &R S WA 12,929 9,440
Interest income from money lending BEMEKA 24,043 32,103
218,007 425,575
Note: F 5L -
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: KEEPEHNZWGE 2D
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-\F+=ZA=+—BHLEE
International
air and
Trading Finance sea freight
of goods leasing Brokerage forwarding Total
BEBmER
BEEER MEHE &g BLEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHRT T FHRT
Geographic Market 118 1 55
Hong Kong aBE - - 1,524 - 1,524
PRC Gl 159,261 15,052 - - 174,313
Singapore BAWIIIE - - - 1,914 1,914
North and South of America =M R mEEM - - - 3,284 3,284
159,261 15,052 1,524 5,198 181,035
Major Products/Services FEERRS
Trading of electronic products BEESETEM 159,261 - - - 159,261
Financial services © B AR - 15,052 1,524 - 16,576
International air and sea freight iz kg E
forwarding HERY - - - 5,198 5,198
159,261 15,052 1,524 5,198 181,035
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10. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017

10. W& (&)

Hsx: (&)
KEEFANZ W@y (B)
BE-T—+E+-A=+-ALFE

International

air and
Trading Finance sea freight
of goods leasing Brokerage forwarding Total
BIRR Mz |2
EEEM REME & BLEE fEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FET TER TR
Geographic Market I 5
Hong Kong aBH - - 1,269 - 1,269
PRC & 356,943 19,178 - - 376,121
Singapore B - - - 2,162 2,162
North and South America B VEE=E | - - - 4,480 4,480
356,943 19,178 1,269 6,642 384,032
Major Products/Services FTEESR R
Trading of electronic products B & E T E 356,943 - - - 356,943
Financial services & BAR - 19,178 1,269 - 20,447
International air and sea Bz RS
freight forwarding BiE R - - - 6,642 6,642
356,943 19,178 1,269 6,642 384,032
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10. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Trading of goods

Revenue from the trading of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

—  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

—  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 90 days.

Finance leasing

Consultancy income from finance leasing is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered. The
customers pay the consultancy service fee to the Group according
to the payment schedules as stipulated in the contracts.

Brokerage

Commission income on dealing in securities and futures contract is
recognised on a trade date basis when the services are rendered,
the amount for which can be reliably estimated and it is probable
that the income will be received. The commission income is due on
the settlement date of their respective trade dates, normally two or
three business days after the respective trade date.

International air and sea freight forwarding

Income from provision of freight forwarding services is recognised
when the services are provided. The Group normally allow credit
period of 90 days.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the type of goods
sold or services delivered or provided. The Directors have chosen
to organise the Group around difference in products and services.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments are as follows:

a) Trading of goods segment engages in trading of products
including but not limited to radio system and electronic
appliance in the PRC;

b)  Finance leasing segment engages in finance leasing of plant
and machinery in the PRC;

¢)  Money lending segment engages in money lending in Hong
Kong;

d) Brokerage segment engages in securities and futures dealing
services in Hong Kong;

e) International air and sea freight forwarding segment engages
in the provision of international air and sea freight forwarding
and logistic services to customers in Singapore and United
States of America; and

f)  Securities trading segment engages in trading of equity

securities and dividend income from held for trading
investments in Hong Kong.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) M. 7EER (&)
Segment revenues and results DU R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by TXABASEERRERKEDEBE D
reportable and operating segments. 2 R EE ST
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z-N\F+=-ZA=+—HBLHF
E
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending Brokerage  forwarding trading Total
EEEm HERE & &g RELEE BHEHE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERx TR TER TiEx TiEx TiEx

Turnover BEH 159,261 27,981 24,043 1,524 5,198 - 218,007
Revenue from NEBEENE

external customers 159,261 27,981 24,043 1,524 5,198 - 218,007
Segment results PEEE (6,581) (867) 16,566 (38,622) (370) (14,069) (43,943)

Unallocated corporate A AR EEF X

expenses (36,317)
Unallocated corporate AP EEBYA

income 6,199
Loss before tax BEAEE (74,061)
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The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represents the (loss from) profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, depreciation of certain property, plant
and equipment, share of losses of associates, gain on disposal of
an associate, gain on disposal of asset classified as held for sale,
gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net foreign
exchange gain (loss), interest income from promissory note
receivable, bank interest income and sundry income. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) M. ZEER (&)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DM ERESE (B
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=-+—HLF
=
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending Brokerage  forwarding trading Total
Gl
EEAm HERE EE gy RSrgE E5EE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TET TEL TEL TEL
Turnover BEXE 356,943 28,618 32,103 1,269 6,642 111,973 537,548
Revenue from SR P g
external customers 356,943 28,618 32,103 1,269 6,642 - 425,575
Segment results PEEE 1,523 14,758 23,688 (4,242) 3) (8,330) 27,394
Share of losses of AEBENAEE
associates (2,183)
Unallocated corporate AP B EBERER
expenses (34,349)
Unallocated corporate A A REEMA
income 41,676
Profit before tax B 75 i i 32,538

WED 2 G BR B 3 ALE
Bz @R EERMER - DR EEREDH
(FrEAZEE)PTBRER 2 EH - i
APEFRITBRA BEEHE AT
ME BERREONTE - DIEBER
ABE HE-—RBERARZKE S
ENBERFIFLHEZEERS HED
X BFE Kz W - HMNE e (&
B)FHE BUELEEMERA R
TR BRA TR A - i RO BCE
BREFHERBE MR ZEERKRERE
W HEE
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) M. 2BER &)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by TXAAREEERESHEAD 2EE
reportable segments. KaE -
At 31 December 2018 R=ZF-—-N\F+=-A=+—H
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending  Brokerage  forwarding trading Total
ARRER
EEWR RERE g (S BLEE REEE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET FEL FEL FhL

ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEHBE 151,737 186,949 406,333 70,053 834 3,003 818,909

Unallocated corporate AP REEEE

assets 469,230
Consolidated assets BREE 1,288,139
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities PHaE 980 8,817 o 26,408 1,697 = 37,902

Unallocated corporate AP R EEEE

liabilities 15,119
Consolidated liabilities A E(E 53,021
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. 2WER
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) ITHMEERERE (&)
At 31 December 2017 (Restated) RZE—+tF+_A=+—H (K=&
5)
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending Brokerage  forwarding trading Total
HEmz
EEdm HERE [E& @y BLEE EHER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn ThEL ThET ThEL THEL ThEL
(Restated)
(#55))
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NHEE 155,384 207,323 363,275 122,510 1,130 16,380 866,002
Unallocated corporate ~ KAREBEE
assets (Restated) (mE5) 314,171
Consolidated assets REEE 1,180,173
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities AHEE 167 8,183 - 49,152 1,877 - 59,379
Unallocated corporate A2 EEERE
liabilities 17,178
Consolidated liabilities A EE 76,557

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary, deferred tax
assets, pledged bank deposit, promissory note receivable,
bank balances and cash, the equipment of head office and
certain other receivables; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
tax liabilities and certain other payables.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2018

M. 2BER &)
H b o3& R

BE-_F-N\F+-A=t—-HLHF

E
International
air and
Trading Finance Money sea freight  Securities
of goods leasing lending  Brokerage  forwarding trading  Unallocated Total
BBMZER
BEER  HEHE #E B BLEE  B%EE E) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn T T AR TiEx AR TiEn
Amounts included in the measure ~ (f 2 HEE TS B
of segment profit or loss or EERTALEE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets ~ AEFTREBEE
(Note) (F3E) 26 33 - 69 - - 50 178
Depreciation of property, nE BERRERE
plant and equipment 716 EY) - 574 9 - 2,298 3,629
Unrealised loss on fair value change A FE ABH 2
on financial assets at fair value £ EREEATEEHZ
through profit or loss AERBE - - - - - 13,377 - 13377
Amounts regularly provided to the  THRTELEREE
chief operating decision maker ~ REEREHH
but not included in the measure B H S BEER
of segment profit or loss or REFAZEE:
segment assets:
Written off of property, HEn% RERRE
plant and equipment - 1 - - - - - 1
Interest income B - (409) (10) (20) - (1) (5,619) (6,059)
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

e BHRRME

~NFF+ZA=F—HIFE

M. 2BER (&)
Hibn %Bﬁ“(%%)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —tF+ZA=+—HL#F
=
International
airand
Trading Finance Money sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending Brokerage  forwarding trading  Unallocated Total
AERER
EEER  WERE EE b BLEE  EFER AAR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TERL TEL TEn AL TER
Amounts included in the measure ?ri BEaIAH
of segment profit or loss or ERTALEE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets  REFRELE
(Note) (M) 1,225 2 - 72,920 % - 77 74,248
Depreciation of property, nE BERRERE
plant and equipment 701 33 - 232 6 - 2,686 3,658
Realised loss on financial assets at AT EFAEH 2
fair value through profitor loss ~ £BEEZEEH
Bl - - - - - 3,204 - 3,204
Unrealised loss on fair value change % ATE:F AEH 2
on financial assets at fair value £ REEZAEHE
through profit or loss ATEEHER - - - - - 1,624 - 1,624
Amounts regularly provided to the  THRTELEREE
chief operating decision maker b Eﬁfﬁin‘ﬁ
but not included in the measure ~ BRXAHE
of segment profit or loss or %ﬁaﬁ\Zﬁ%ﬁ :
segment assets:
Written off of property, HEnE RERRE
plant and equipment - - - - - - 58 58
Interest income HEHA (940) (173) (1) - - (1) (4,257) (5372)

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income, finance lease receivables, loan receivables, deposit

for acquisition of a subsidiary, regulatory deposit and deferred tax assets.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) M. 7EER (&)

Geographical information

Trading of goods is carried out in the PRC. International air and sea
freight forwarding services are carried out in Singapore, North and
South America. Finance leasing is carried out in the PRC. Trading of
securities, money lending and brokerage services are carried out in
Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operations of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is

it & &

ARBRPERTEEDD R
B LW R EME TR RS
FEEET - AT IR BT -
ESXEE EEREERBEINEBE
7o

AEBEIBEPEZERDEREPK
BRIy ARBIFRBEEEMS
HEEMEERS-

presented based on the geographical location of assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

MERE FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-0\F  ZEFL£F  ZE-NF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TR TET

Hong Kong BB 25,567 33,372 47,558 79,293
PRC i 187,242 385,561 818 1,559
Singapore B 1,914 2,162 17 18
North and South America b =M R EIM 3,284 4,480 = -
218,007 425,575 48,393 80,870
Note: Non-current assets excluded regulatory deposits, financial assets at fair e FERDEETEIBETIES RAFER
value through other comprehensive income, finance lease receivables, loan AHMEEbzH s SREE  BREER
receivables, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary and deferred tax assets. EFIE -ERER WE-—HEHRBRAFZ

FEEFER
RERFEUTERER 2 WG
EEBAWZEBIB10% :

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the overall revenue of the Group is as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FAT

- Customer A —FFH 112,466 106,063

— Customer B’ -BR 4 46,795 250,880
L Revenue from trading of goods segment ! B BB M2 W
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12. OTHER INCOME 12. HftBlg A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Interest income from RKETHIEE 2 FEHA

- bank —R1T 659 188
— overdue trade receivables — 180 B E AR 5K - 938
— promissory note receivable —BUWE R ER 5,400 4,246
Write-off of other payable 4 H 4t FE < FRIE - 7,240
Service income from money lending business K B & & %7 ~ R U A - 38
Government grant (Note) AT B (PR EE) 3 6
Exchange gain M 5 U 2= - 281
Sundry income LN 137 435
6,199 13,372

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, a government grant of e BE-ZT—/\F+-A=+—RHLFE"

approximately HK$3,000 (2017: HK$6,000) was granted to the Group in
relation to the job credit scheme in Singapore on the condition that the JiT# B 493,000/ 7T ( = Z —+4F : 6,000
Group has made CPF contributions in Singapore. The government grant BIL) cARBEBRAFMEZFRAES
has been recognised in the same periods in which the expenses were R B 1S XU B o 5% BUR 7 B)
recognised. BIERR X 2 AR BE A ER -

13.5R (E#H)#F

R EE LRI — AL E A BY 5 BIES IR

13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHEIT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at R (18 ) & F Ty & 1
after charging (crediting): (5t A) T3 & 1814 ES
Staff costs EE KA
— directors’ emoluments (note 14(a)) —EE5ME (FH3E14)) 9,411 11,021
— other staff costs —E g B A 25,060 22,297
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — — 3R VR4E A 5T 8 3%

(excluding those for Directors) (TRERESHI 1,120 1,014
Total staff costs EERAREEE 35,591 34,332
Auditor’s remuneration % HE B & 915 1,148
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment#7 2 B = & R BT E 3,629 3,658
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  H#$E#¥1 % - 5 & & & 1 58
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BEREHE BB

plant and equipment = 44
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) SNEEE (WEs) F58 17 (281)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR 2 FEK K 156,448 349,675
Minimum lease payments under operating MAZEMERE T ESLE

leases in respect of office premises and HEZ&EHES

staff quarters 21,232 18,570
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Note:

(i) The discretionary bonus is based on the relevant individual's
performance and the Company’s performance and profitability and
the prevailing market conditions.

(i) Liu Wei has also been the chief executive of the Company since 19
June 2018 and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as chief executive.

(iii)  Other benefits represented rents paid for directors’ quarters.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2017: four) were Directors whose emoluments
are set out in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of the
remaining one (2017: one) individual were as follows:

14 EERITHREAZHNERES

< @)
(a) EERTHEARMS &)

M EE -

(i) BBEADERBBALRR AR
RIXBERBNENARTISRNE
Fo

(i) BEE-ZE-NFXATABETR
ARRITHRBE R EXHEZHE
BEBREETREHMRMRZ RS
PR 2Bl -

(i) Htv@EFEREEEEXNES-

(b) BEM=

AEEhEESHFALERENS

—TEF MR EE KEZ
MEBR X ()@ - Ep—BA
T (ZE—tF:—R) M
BT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 1,800 3,040
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFET &I

contributions 18 18

1,818 3,058

The emoluments were within the following bands:

MEE NIBERA :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

No. of No. of

employee employee

EEA#™ EEAH

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7L £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 or HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T £3,500,000/% 7T = 1

114



EEEEZEREMRAT 2018F 3K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the Directors and the employees waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments paid by the Group during the years ended 31

December 2018 and 2017.

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14 BEERTHREEZMERES
M€ (@)

(b) EEMS (&)

REBEE_ZT—NFRZZ—+tF
+ZA=+—BIFE AEEW
ERNEELNAIEEaTALTIN
B <& DA IR S| 1 S5 0 B AN &= B sk
BEEMBAER ZEKIES
HBEE - REE-T-N\EN
T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE"
WEEEREEHREXRENE
REEDN 2 EMBME -

15. FTEHEX

2018 2017
—E-N\E e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Current tax: g EATiE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEREH - 775
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI MRS 4,253 4,788
Withholding tax paid on distributed —EFREREARE DIk
earnings of a PRC subsidiary (Note (i) BA 2 FEME () - 1,128
4,253 6,691
Under provision in prior years: BEFEREBNE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI MRS
— Rongjinda Finance (Note (ii)) — B ERE (M) 634 3,289
- Others —HAh - 232
634 3,521
Deferred tax (note 29): REHIE (H5E29)
Current year REEF (3,399) (2,199)
1,488 8,013
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as the loss for the taxation purpose
is estimated during the year. Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "“EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries, is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

No provision for Singapore and the United States of America Profits
Tax has been made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits in Singapore and the United States of America during the
two years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Notes:

(i)  According to the PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law, distribution of
profits earned by PRC companies since 1 January 2008 to foreign investors
is subject to withholding tax of 5% or 10%, depending on the country of
incorporation of the foreign investor, upon the distribution of profits to
overseas-incorporated immediate holding companies.

(i) Rongjinda Finance Lease Company Limited* (Ft& ERMEREARAF)
("Rongjinda Finance”) was established in Qianhai, Shenzhen. Pursuant
to the notice issued by the Authority of Qianhai Shenzhen - Hong Kong
Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone dated 10 October 2017,
Rongjinda Finance cannot fulfil the requirements entitling it to enjoy the
concessionary tax rate. Therefore, the applicable tax rate of Rongjinda
Finance was restored to 25% from the first profit making year, i.e. year
ended 31 December 2015.
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FEVENTREBNEHEE -REE
—E—+HE+-"fA=+—HItEE &
BRIGHE B E T ER DR FIR M X
16.5%+t & -

BIEPBECEMSRE ([REMBH
ED) R EMEEAZ BiE - - E
MEBARBA -_TZTZN\F—F—A#£x
FRE A25% °

AXREETERBEE _T-N\Fh=
Z—+tF+A=+—BLEMEFEE
PR T A4 B SR M| B2 & R B AR AR
FEERTE A1) - BB 48 A 3 A0 3ge e S M B2
BRBENEHIEL B -

P2 -

(i) RBEHBEFEEMESHE ERREIGEM
PRz ERERAR S RS fEAR
E-ZTENF-A-RERIIEEREED
R PR ER 2 )88 M 2B H25 % 35010 % 8 Bt 2 S 4
T BT 2R EE MR AR

i€

(i) MeEMEREERAA([REERE])
FORYIBDG AL o RIEFRINT ADEFRABER
REH*EFREEREMRZBHA-T—+t
FHA+TAZAN BeEREREREE
BEREBREZRT At BeEEZE
AREaERBANFE (MEBE-Z—AF
T A=+—HIFE)BIREAR25% °
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The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

15. TEHBEX ()

FRAZABHAYBRaBs REM
EEWERMY BB A (EE) &
HERWT

2018 2017
=E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT F&T
(Loss) profit before tax BrELAT (B8 ) & 7 (74,061) 32,538
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% IR A FTB T F E25%
(2017: 25%) (ZE2—+tF:25%)
AEZHIE (18,515) 8,134
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EHEHMAEERELE 2
operating in other jurisdictions B /&8 A B ER A IS A 7 =
e 5,634 (831)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEMBRL BB E
for tax purpose 6,557 2,712
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBTRA 2 RB2
for tax purpose (1,175) (7,106)
Tax effect of share of losses of associates DR RAREEIBHETE - 360
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AER IR BIEZH G E 7,966 2,294
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 634 3,521
Withholding tax on distributed profits of F R B B A BB 9 K g 7
subsidiary operating in the PRC Z TEw - 1,128
Re-measurement of deferred tax due to HAERREREETTE
change of applicable tax rate IR IE = (2,199)
Tax effect of temporary difference RERZ BB ZRB MG E
not recognised 387 -
Income tax expense Frigfif = 1,488 8,013
Details of deferred tax are set out in note 29. RIEF AT IS M 5229 o
DIVIDEND 16. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end

of the reporting period (2017: nil).
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17.(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

17. 8K (BE) BH

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

ARBHEBAREGRERLEE (&
B)BFTIRBATBETE:

following data:

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tfF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Loss) profit (E8)&F
(Loss) profit for the purpose of basic and HERERNREE (BE)
diluted (loss) earnings per share BRME 2 (E18)&H
((Loss)profit for the year attributable to (RRFAHEAEEFR
owners of the Company) (E1E)mA) (75,533) 24,533
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
‘000 ‘000
TR’ F i
(Restated)
(&&E35)
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Ft& % AR K #5E (F1E)
for the purpose of basic and diluted (loss) ABAmME 2 EBR
earnings per share DNHE ¥ 19 8 4,201,149 3,632,283

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise prices of those options were higher than the average
market price for both 2018 and 2017.

By passing an ordinary resolution at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 16 October 2018, every two ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each in the issued and unissued share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one consolidated ordinary
share of HK$0.1 each in the issued and unissued share capital of
the Company. As a result of the share consolidation, the weighted
average number of ordinary shares adopted in the calculation of
the basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been adjusted retrospectively.
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.M¥ BERRHE
Furniture
and Office Motor Leasehold
fixtures equipment vehicles  improvements Total
BRREE BAERE RE HENEEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FAR FAR FER FEL
cost KA
At 1 January 2017 R_E—+F—-fA-H 386 853 13,813 477 15,529
Exchange realignment BERA% 3 19 123 - 145
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wk B A 6 1332 - - 1338
Additions NE 417 90 821 - 1,328
Written off M (47) (136) - - (183)
Disposals & - - (1,157) - (1,157)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F
1 January 2018 +ZA=+-8k
“Z-\E-A-H 765 2,158 13,600 477 17,000
Exchange realignment EHAE (20) (13) (132) - (165)
Additions NE 50 128 - - 178
Written off ik - (44) - - (44)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=1+-H 795 2,229 13,468 477 16,969
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZHMERAME
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 R-Z-+5-f-8 227 47 4,189 278 5,111
Exchange realignment ERA% 1 12 79 - 92
Provided for the year EnER 214 465 2,820 159 3,658
Written off M (29) (96) - - (125)
Disposals HE - - (213) - 213)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F
1 January 2018 +ZA=+-8k
“E-\¥-A-H 413 798 6,875 437 8,523
Exchange realignment EHAE (8) 21) (93) - (122)
Provided for the year FREE 93 73 2,723 40 3,629
Written off ik - (43) - - (43)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
T-A=1-H 498 1,507 9,505 477 11,987
CARRYING VALUES FAE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\%
+ZA=+-H 297 722 3,963 - 4,982
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t%F
T-A=1-H 352 1,360 6,725 40 8,477
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18.

19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following useful life and rates per
annum:

“NEFZA=A—AUEE

18. W13 - B R RAE (2

L% BRI REERE
<HHEITE

AR DA AT 450 P 4 B e K

Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33.33% @W\&zéﬁ 10% —33.33%
Office equipment 10% - 33.33% MAZRME 10% —33.33%
Motor vehicles 16.67% — 33.33% A 16.67% —33.33%
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease or three HEWHERE HEFHN=F
years, whichever is shorter (LAEEHE AHE)
INTANGIBLE ASSET 9. B\ EE
Money
lending
license
BEER
HK$'000
FAT
COST AND CARRYING VALUE A & BR B
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, RZFT—+F—H—H"
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —tF+=A=+—8"
—NF—A—HRK
E—-NE+-A=+—H 811

The license has a legal life of 1 year but is renewable every year
at minimal cost. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group
would renew the license continuously and has the ability to do
so. Various studies including product life cycle studies, market,
competitive and environmental trends, and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the Group,
which supports that the license has no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the provision of services restricted by license are
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the license is considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The license will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it
will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.

120

MR ZERFHRIF B AREK
rEFEP EFTRALEEBSHE
RERES WTHEBUE -AEEE
BECETZEME  BREEMF M
R-MH BELREBYE UALSE
BAKE ZEREIFERFHL &
TEERRR il - 42 5% ke PR PR ) 2 AR 7% 7]
REFHHBRAEETRKRATRE
FEE o

it AREEEEERRZEREE®
FREEAFEH - BRI R AT ERE
HIBESRAFE - ERAG TS -
BEEHGAFHRETRAR R E
F I8 FRR AT A8 2R E ORI ELUEDR
Ee



19.

20.

EEEEZEREMRAT 2018F 3K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

INTANGIBLE ASSET (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018, management of the Group determines that
there are no impairments of the cash-generating unit containing
the license with indefinite useful life.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit containing the
license is determined on a value in use calculation. Management
of the Group prepared a cash flow forecast based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period, and
discount rate of 16.50% (2017: 16.59%). The forecast for the
budgeted period was based on the approved loan agreement
entered before the reporting date and the expectations for the
market development in the money leading business. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in the discount rate
would not cause the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
containing a license to exceed the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit.

0. \|EEE (&)

RZZE-N\F+-_A=+—H ~&E
EEEETHESRAEREMAFH L
KRR 2 3 & B AR B A R R RE -

BEBMRBzRESEEEMZIKE £
BIERAFTEZERAEBEEE A5
EERBENCESHEL EREH/HY
FHRESEELRE S RETEA - REIR =X
/16.50% ( ZZE—+4%:16.59% ) °
FEE IR 2 BB I E R R RS B Hi R
RN M EE R R R EME X
MBERMNBHAMEL - BIREHEIE -
BiIR R 2 E A BA e EFH B T8
HEEMBZReESBMNZERE
BRREELEEN A REILHE-

GOODWILL 20. &
HK$'000
FET
COST AR
At 1 January 2017 R—E—+F—H—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B /B A B 71,582
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and RZE—+tF+ZA=+—0H"
31 December 2018 —E-N\F—A—HK
—E-N\F+=ZA=+—H 71,582
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and R-_ZE—+F—HF—H8"
1 January 2018 —E—+F+-B=+—HE
—E—-NF—HA—H -
Provided for the year F R 28,982
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-NF+=-ZA=+—H 28,982
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-—NF+=ZA=+—H 42,600
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+tF+=-A=+—H 71,582

121



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 20182 =F—/\iF+=A=+—HILFE

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

21.

Goodwill was allocated to the Group’s cash generating unit
("CGU") of regulated financial services business. The acquisition
was completed on 14 August 2017.

The recoverable amount of regulated financial services business
has been determined based on the value-in-use calculation with
reference to a valuation performed by independent professional
qualified valuers not connected to the Group. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management of the Group covering a 5-year period, and a
discount rate of 16.50% (2017: 16.89%). Cash flows beyond
5-year period are projected using 3% growth rate. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted revenue from regulated financial
services business, such estimations are based on the CGU's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Due to unsatisfactory market sentiment and keen
competition, in particular uncertainties in the financial market,
the aggregate carrying amount of CGU exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of CGU. As a result, an impairment of
approximately HK$28,982,000 for the goodwill was recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

20.BE ()

21.

»

BEENEEAKEIREEZBRE
EBMASELEU ([ REELE
fr]) - WBER=_ZT—+FN\A+MNAR
X

TRECHRBEB 2TRESER
RREABENEET U2ZHEAE
EMEEE B IEESERGERM
T2 BB - Zr B EAERAEE
EEEERFE M BEEELY
2R METED  REEIEEA16.50%
(ZZ—+%:16.89% ) - BB R FH
2R REBR3%ERRHELES L -
{55 A3 RO RE IR 2 A 5 B = R B2 AR R IR
CESEMNFENETRR -FHEE
AEMEMEERI S RGHTRESR
AR HEPBESRESRREE
HEANBENEG ZHTERESE
FEMNMBARREEEESEMEE
BEOEEEL - AR T B RE L T4E
BHFER LERSRMIB M TE
TR REELSEM/REAERB
ReEFBEMZARE S5 AL
HE-_ZE—\F+-_A=+—HLHF
ERIEREREEREL28,982,000%
5T

BT EH AR 2 E RS
ZERMAE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —TE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHx FiBT
Equity instruments RATE
Listed equity investment in London, R EmRAIRE -
at fair value (note i,iii) RATERE (M) 5,227 7,062
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong, REBIELTRAESH
at fair value (note ii,iii) maFERE (KR i) 10,940 23,760
16,167 30,822
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INC

Notes:

iii)

OME (CONTINUED)

The Group's listed equity investment represented 9.09% equity interest
in a company listed in Alternative Investment Market of London Stock
Exchange as at the end of the reporting period. The listed equity
investment is measured at fair value and is classified as level 1 fair value
measurement (see note 8).

In 2002, the Group, through an acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
acquired 30,000,000 promoters’ shares in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Technology Company (“BBJB”) (the “Promoters’ Shares”) of RMBO.1
each at a consideration of HK$38,250,000, which is equivalent to 2.18%
of total issued share capital (including H shares and Promoters’ Shares) of
BBJB as at the end of the reporting period.

BBJB is a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the PRC
with its H shares listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Board”).
The Promoters’ Shares were unlisted share capital issued by BBJB when it
was initially listed on the GEM Board in 2000. According to the Company
Law in the PRC, the Promoters’ Shares were not transferable within three
years from the date of incorporation of BBJB on 29 March 2000. The
unlisted equity investment is measured at fair value and is classified as level
2 fair value measurement (see note 8).

The above Investments are intended to be held for medium to long term.
Designation of these investments as equity investment of fair value through
other comprehensive income can avoid the volatility of the fair value
change of these Investments to the profit and loss.

Fair value loss of the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income approximately HK$14,655,000 (2017:
HK$1,095,000, restated) was recognised as other comprehensive expense
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BEZERECATEEHHREEL R
HyE-
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22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 2. ERMEHEENRE
All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract MEZHABRAEMEZBELOEHRRE
date over the lease terms. LBEEE-
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
T F# T
Finance lease receivables JE U 3 & F & ROE 213,980 224,166
Less: allowance for impairment of finance W FEN RS T SR E R
lease receivables (35,195) (22,756)
Finance lease receivables, net R R E M E I8 F 178,785 201,410
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEEWITA:
— Non-current assets —JEREBEE - 7,673
— Current assets —REBEE 178,785 193,737
178,785 201,410
The movements on the allowance for impairment of finance lease R EmEREFIRERERES ST

receivables are as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —TE

HK$000 HK$'000

FER FHET

At 1 January m—H—H 22,756 22,184
Exchange realignment R (1,156) 572
Impairment loss recognised B RREEE 13,595 -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 35,195 22,756
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22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Minimum lease payments

22.

e BHRRME

—NEFZA=F—AULEE

FEUumEREMR

,\ (&)

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BEREMNR BEREARZEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“g-\§ -T-+F =F-N\§f T tf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL THT TR
Finance lease receivables comprise: R EHERERRE:
Within one year —%R 179,019 195,230 178,785 193,737
After one year but within two years —ERERRER - 7,840 = 7,673
179,019 203,070 178,785 201,410
Less: unearned interest income B AR BRI 2 A (234) (1,660) = -
Present value of minimum lease ERHERERFHEA
payment receivables 178,785 201,410 178,785 201,410

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases range from 6%
to 8% (2017: 5.1% to 6%) per annum. As at 31 December 2018
and 2017, finance lease receivables are secured over the motor
vehicles and plant and machinery leased and for certain corporate
lessees, equity interest of the lessees are required as additional
security.

Before accepting any finance lease arrangement, the Group
assesses the financial strength of the lessee and considers the
credit limit granted to the lessee. In addition, the Group may
request for the guarantor with strong financial status where
necessary.

As at 31 December 2018, finance lease receivables before
allowance for impairment of approximately RMB172,403,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$196,278,000 (2017: approximately
RMB149,410,000, equivalent to approximately HK$179,127,000)
was past due. Included in the carrying amount of the above
finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2018 are two
individually impaired receivables (2017: one individually impaired
receivable) of approximately RMB30,913,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$35,195,000 (2017: RMB18,981,000, equivalent
to approximately HK$22,756,000) which impairment was made
due to customers’ default in payment. The Group has taken legal
actions against these customers and considered the legal opinion
from independent legal advisers during impairment assessment. For
the remaining past due amount of approximately RMB141,490,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$161,083,000), subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, partial settlements were received and
repayment terms, schedules or debt settlement arrangement have
been negotiated or agreed between the Group and the lessees and
as such there is no default in repayment thereafter. Accordingly,
the Directors considered no further impairment loss needs to be
recognised.
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22.

23.

e BHRRME

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Management closely monitors the credit quality of finance lease
receivables and considers the finance lease receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired relate to finance lessees for whom
there was no recent history of default. As at 31 December 2018,
the age of the finance lease receivables was within three years
(2017: within three years) based on the effective dates of the
relevant lease contracts.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. EWWmERERIE (8)

EEERYEEERBEREERIEL
FEEEZURAERBITEREBEIE
W gt & 0 & OB Ml BRI | R KR
R BMEFABA - RZZE—NF+=A
=+—H REEEAEAHNZEKHE
B ENmEHEREZRRA=FRN
TE—+FE I =ZFR)-

23. EWBR A K H b fE W Fh 18

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Trade receivables arising from trading EEXEBIE® 2 EWRR
business 149,424 153,007
Trade receivables arising from the securities FHHRHECLEBHES Y
and futures brokerage business & W BR 7R 16,341 14,089
Trade receivables arising from finance leasing BMEMHEEKMEL
business JE W BR 3R 7,053 4,316
Trade receivables arising from international ~ BB #iZe &) B 5
air and sea freight forwarding business PREE & 7 W BR 3K 2,041 2,420
Less: allowance for impairment R E R (1,464) (1,460)
577 960
Prepayments T R IE 2,410 1,905
Deposits and other receivables & I H fth FEUGRIA 9,827 9,319
185,632 183,596

The Group’s trade receivables arising from securities and futures
brokerage business include cash clients, Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKFECC") and brokers
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$Nil, HK$696,000 and
HK$15,645,000 respectively (2017: approximately HK$157,000,
HK$3,198,000 and HK$10,734,000 respectively).

The Group allows an average credit period normally ranging from
30 days to 180 days (2017: 30 days to 180 days) to its customers.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debt) presented based on the invoice date
or the payment date as stated in the respective contracts at the
end of the reporting period, which approximates the respective
revenue recognition date.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuep)  23. FEUR BR 7k Iz H. fib FE U 7018

(&

/

International

air and sea
Finance freight
Trading leasing forwarding
business business business
) BRMZER
BEEXYE REHEEK BSLEEXEHR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTHER THER

2018: —E-N\F:
Within 30 days 30BA - - 227
31-60 days 31260H - 6,541 84
61-90 days 61290H - - 150
Over 90 days H#3B90H 149,424 512 116
149,424 7,053 577
International
air and sea
Finance freight
Trading leasing forwarding
business business business
\ EBEHER
BEEYE REHEXE SLEEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT FAT

2017: —E—tF:
Within 30 days 30BA - - 587
31-60 days 31260H 141,644 - 195
61-90 days 61£290H - - 15
Over 90 days H#iB90H 11,363 4,316 163
153,007 4,316 960

KEBFRLEEB 2 BESRFEEH

The settlement term of trade receivables arising from the securities

brokerage business are two trade days after the trade execution
date. The trade receivables from HKFECC and futures brokers are
repayable on demand which represent amounts deposited for trade
execution purpose.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$150,052,000
(2017: HK$4,479,000) which were past due at the end of the
reporting period and for which the Group has not provided
for doubtful debt. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
approximately HK$149,424,000 (2017: HK$4,316,000) of the past
due balances were settled.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuep)  23. FEUR BR FX Iz H fib FE U 7018

(28

/

The aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired based on the invoice date or the payment date as stated
in the respective contracts at the end of reporting date, which
approximately the respective revenue recognition date, is as follow:

BIEREHAREZHHRAEE LA
oz A (RS B W R A B
M) BB B ERE BRERRER D
G

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

31-60 days 31&260H - -
61-90 days 61£290H - -
Over 90 days HBiE90H 150,052 4,479
150,052 4,479

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. The management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as they were
almost fully settled after the year end.

The movements in allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables were as follows:

EaHEEREZBEET SRS A
RAGEEAEERFAEGBCHRIBYR
F-EBEMRRE ARRFEHRNER
BT EEED  WEFUFER
TR 1B B 1

JEUW IR R 2 RERB ST -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

1 January —H—H 1,460 1,449
Exchange realignment ME 3 58 & 4 11
31 December +—-A=+—H 1,464 1,460

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuep) 23, FE UK BR 5k I HL i JE R X1
(%)
The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to NEEERBBME®REERFEIRIEA
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss T % ZEEEWER 28
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit TEHSER G IREEEEE B
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit EEHREERE EREXREEFSE
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit R S A RIS E I BR SR o 48 - TE A
losses also incorporate forward looking information. FEEEBEETEERIEEER-
Over Over Over
30 days 60 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due Total
BN 58 30K ML 60K M £ 90K M L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THEx THER TER THER
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\&F
+ZA=+—H
Weighted average expected & F19FEHEEE
loss rate - - - 1% 0.8%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) FIeEI& %8 (FH#T) 23,343 - - 151,516 174,859
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREE (TEL) - - - 1,464 1,464
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t5F
+ZA=+—H
Weighted average expected M FHEHEE X
loss rate - - - 25% 0.8%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) ATk EI& %8 (FH#T) 167,893 - - 5,939 173,832
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREE (TEL) - - - 1,460 1,460
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20 RAFEFABERZZERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets at fair value through BEAVFEFABRZZEBEE:
profit or loss:
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LTRAES 3,003 16,380

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair
value. The fair value of the listed securities has been determined
by reference to published price quotations in active markets. Loss
on fair value change on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$13,377,000 (2017: HK$1,624,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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24.

25.

26.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

No financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were
disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2018. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed of
certain listed securities and realised loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$3,294,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

The bank deposit of approximately HK$58,000 was pledged by
the Group for the purpose of issuing a guarantee by the bank to
a service provider for security against default payment as at 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$59,000). The pledged bank deposit
carried at fixed interest rate of 0.35% per annum for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 0.25%).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances - trust and segregated accounts

The Group receives and holds monies deposited by clients and
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the brokerage
business. Such monies are maintained in one or more segregated
bank accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
liabilities to respective external clients and other institutions as
trade payables (note 28). However, the Group does not have
a currently enforceable right to offset those payables with the
deposits placed.

Bank balances - general accounts

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and
bank balances that are interest-bearing at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.125% to 0.30% (2017: 0.001% to
0.30%) per annum and have original maturity of three months or
less.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
which are subject to foreign exchange control regulations or not
freely transferable:

24.

25.

26.

BAFEFABZZES@ME

HE-_Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HL*F
EoENERATEFABEZ M
BE-REE-ZT—+tF+A=+—
HIEFE ASEEHEET LELMES
WEBIRAFEFABZ 2SR EER
18%473,294,0008 70 W IB 2R FERR ©

EEARITER

R-ZE-NE+=A=+—H K&
B2 IR T E R A58,00008 L (=&
—+ % 59,000/ L) * A A RITRR
HHRERLENN RO T2 S T E
ReBEZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—8HL
FE-BMBRITTERUAEEFH X
035%f B (ZF—+F:0.25%) °

RITEHREEE
RITEHR-—EERBAURF

AEBEETREEBR RN LR
BEPREMEBERZFE  ZFK
BENHEER-ERZ BB ILNRTE
FoARBCRIBEINDEP REMHE
BOHEBABEREMNERR (ME28) -
AW NREBEREWEARFEFHE
SHRZ T A BROR A R SR BB ITAE R o

RITHESR——RERP

RITRG LIRS PRBAERREZEES L
RITHE S HBITMISEFEF E0.125%
Z030% (ZZE—+tF:0.001%%
030%):H 5 BRFHA A=Ak
BATR

RITREBLR ST AN TAZINEE
AR BIRR Bl S N R] B B #E R 2 BUR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT F#&IT
Amounts denominated in: LA 3 & 8 5B 2 5/IE -
RMB AR 57,999 64,520
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27. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

27. BERERERE

2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loans receivables: JEWE R :

Secured BHEA 46,000 80,000
Unsecured 7 40K 19 329,620 260,000
375,620 340,000
Interest receivables JE W) B 29,902 22,464
405,522 362,464

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEENITA:
— Non-current assets —JERBEE 55,000 -
— Current assets —MEEE 350,522 362,464
405,522 362,464

As at 31 December 2018, secured loans with carrying amount
of HK$46,000,000 (2017: HK$80,000,000) were secured by
shares or assets charges provided by borrowers. The Group does
not hold any collateral over the unsecured loans. The remaining
carrying amount of approximately HK$329,620,000 (2017:
HK$260,000,000) represents unsecured loans certain of which
are accompanied by personal or corporate guarantee. The loans
advanced to the borrowers under the Group’s money lending
business normally had loan periods from 5 to 30 months (2017:
6 to 18 months). The loans provided to borrowers bore interest
rate ranging from 8% — 15% per annum (2017: 8% - 15% per
annum), depending on the individual credit evaluations of the
borrowers. These evaluations focus on the borrowers’ financial
background, individual credit rating, current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the borrowers as well as the
guarantees and/or security from the borrowers (where necessary).
The loans provided to borrowers are repayable in accordance with
the loan agreements, in which the principal amounts are repayable
on maturity and the interests are repayable half-yearly, yearly or on
maturity.
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@ o 1 #5 BR T {8 49329,620,000%8 7T

— & —+4£:260,000,000/& 7T ) A=
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AER AEEZEEEHRTERA
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27. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 27. EWEREFE &)

(CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of loans and interest receivables,
presented based on the dates which loans are granted to
borrowers and interests are accrued.

AT REREZRRNBZREDHT - T5
BREBERARLER B REDESE
MEZ5 -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 90 days 90K A 7,238 4,994
91 — 180 days 91£180K 49,457 6,802
181 - 365 days 181E365K 64,423 199,131
Over 365 days HBiB365K 284,404 151,537
405,522 362,464

As at 31 December 2018, loans and interest receivables of
approximately HK$294,444,000 (2017: HK$206,924,000)
were past due. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
approximately HK$16,315,000 of the past due balances were
settled. The remaining past due amount of approximately
HK$278,129,000 are due from several borrowers with whom the
Group is negotiating practicable repayment terms and schedules.
The Directors assessed their creditworthiness and financial position
and are of view that no impairment loss is necessary. The Group's
neither past due nor impaired loan receivables mainly represented
loans granted to creditworthy customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Accordingly, the Directors considered that
no impairment loss is necessary. Save for the aforesaid secured
loans, the Group does not hold collateral over other balances.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. FE 1Y AR R 2 H At F& Y R=RIH

2018 2017
=E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERx FHET

Trade payables arising from the securities REBHFRAECLEBZ
and futures brokerage business FEATBR 3R 24,776 47,985

Trade payables arising from international air 2R E BIE M= MG F§18

and sea freight forwarding services Ak 7 2 FE T BR 3R 800 1,066
Earnest money from finance lease receivables FEUL g & & 718 2 R & 7,081 7,458
Value-added tax payable JE IS E 960 540
Accrued charges EFtE AR 8,346 9,153
Other payables o JE A RIE 1,939 43
43,902 66,245

The Group's trade payables arising from securities and futures
brokerage business include margin clients, cash clients and clearing
houses with carrying amounts of approximately HK$23,873,000,
HK$903,000 and HK$nil respectively (2017: HK$44,931,000,
HK$2,898,000 and HK$156,000 respectively).

For trade payables arising from the securities and futures brokerage
business, no aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s margin and
cash clients and clearing house as these clients were carried on
an open account basis, the aging analysis does not give additional
value in the view of the nature of business of securities brokerage.
Also, the settlement terms of clearing house is two trading days
after the transaction dates.

The average credit period on international air and sea freight
forwarding services is normally ranging from 30 days to 90
days (2017: 30 days to 90 days). The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled
within the credit timeframe.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 28. FE {3 BR X 2 H ft FE {4 IR
(#8)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from AT AR SREBRK A HEME RS
international air and sea freight forwarding services presented ITEERBZENERNERRDT T
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: RBEZAHEY:
2018 2017
= % —EF—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within 30 days 30HA 169 439
31-60 days 31£60H - 2
61-90 days 61£290H 7 1
Over 90 days HBE90H 624 624
800 1,066
29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EEBL B
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for R BREMES  BERIBLEHR AT
financial reporting purposes: O
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHx FiBT
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 8,676 5,689
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEE = -
8,676 5,689
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29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements there on during the current year and

prior year:

Accelerated

29 EEBIE (#)

RAFERELFEBRRBZIERER
HEE(BE) REZFHBAWT:

Fair value

change in

financial
assets at fair  Impairment on

tax value through  finance lease
depreciation Tax losses  profit or loss receivables Total
BAYa
TtABE
ZEREE HEHE
MEREHE REBER AYESH ERRERE @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TER TER
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-A-H 1,010 (9,343) 8,333 (3,179) (3,179)
(Credit) charge to consolidated Birt iR (GrA) Mk
profit or loss:
- current year movement -EHEER (354) 8,687 (8,333) - -
- Remeasurement of opening -BNERENHE
balance (note i) (Pt EED) - - - (2,199) (2199
Exchange realignment EHA% - - - (311) (311)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tE+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2018 —Z-)\#—R-H 656 (656) - (5,689) (5,689)
(Credit) charge to consolidated BEAER GIA)Mk:
profit or loss:
- current year movement -EHNERED (656) 656 - (3,399) (3,399)
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - 412 412
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+-A=1-H - - - (8,676) (8,676)
Note: B 5

(i) Re-measurement of deferred tax due to change of applicable tax rate of

Rongjinda Finance (note 15(ii)).
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29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$341,642,000 (2017: HK$296,177,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of estimated unutilised tax losses (2017:
HK$3,976,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The estimated unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$334,977,000 (2017: HK$294,995,000) may be carried forward
against future taxable income indefinitely under the current tax
legislation in Hong Kong.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to subsidiaries
in the PRC amounted to approximately HK$5,513,000 (2017:
HK$242,000) that will expire within five years from the end of the
reporting period.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to a subsidiary
in Singapore amounted to approximately HK$1,152,000 (2017:
HK$940,000) of which the use is subject to the agreement of
the tax authority and compliance with certain provision of the
tax legislation in Singapore and may be carried forward against
future taxable income indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The Group
had no other unrecognised deductible temporary difference as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries (2017: HK$3,990,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R

Number of Number of Share Share
shares shares capital capital
K& A kin#A IS RA
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E —E-t% —E-N\E —E-t%
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tk FET TEL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 BREEIAT

(2017: HK$0.05) each (Z2—tF:0058) 2 EBR
Authorised: 3

At 1 January »—RA—H 50,000,000 50,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

Share consolidation (note iii) Bin a6 (BisEiin) (25,000,000) - - -

At 31 December Rt-A=t-H 25,000,000 50,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:

At 1 January »—A—H 7,264,566 7,264,566 363,228 363,228
Issue of shares upon placement of shares REER D% ETR (W)

(note i) 1,452,000 - 72,600 -
Issue of shares upon placement of shares REE R B ETRN (Fiai)

(note i) 1,452,000 - 72,600 -
Share consolidation (note i) R4 B (Wil (5,084,283) - - -
As 31 December RTZA=t-H 5,084,283 7,264,566 508,428 363,228
Note: b

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

On 30 May 2018, the Company and a placing agent entered into a placing
agreement in respect of the placement of 1,452,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each to independent investors at a price of HK$0.07 per share.
The placement was completed on 25 June 2018 and the premium on
the issue of shares, amounting to approximately HK$26,805,000 net of
share issue expenses of approximately HK$2,235,000, was credited to the
Company's share premium account.

On 31 August 2018, the Company and a placing agent entered into
a placing agreement in respect of the placement of 1,452,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.101 per share. The placement was completed on 27 September
2018 and the premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately
HK$70,636,000 net of share issue expenses of approximately
HK$3,416,000, was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 October 2018, every two
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in the issued and unissued share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one consolidated ordinary share of
HK$0.10 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the Company.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. B IR ESTE

The 2012 scheme

On 22 May 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 Scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) under which the board of Directors may at its
discretion offer to any Director (including non-executive Director),
employee, suppliers, customers, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the
Group, shareholders of any member of the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds an equity interests and any other group
or classes of persons or entities who have contributed to the
development and growth of the Group (“Participant”) to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme. The principal purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to
provide incentive or rewards for the Participant’s contributions to
the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2012
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the Directors being
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of
a share.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The 2012 scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The 2012 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of Directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of Directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2012 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme to 21
May 2022, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2012 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2012 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

At 31 December 2018, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2012 Scheme was nil (2017: 218,002,090), representing 0%
(2017: 3%) of the shares of the Company in issue as at the end of
reporting period and the date of this report.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 31. BRER & (®)
The 2012 scheme (Continued) —E-—FHE
The following table discloses movements in the Company's share TREBEARARBEBE-_ZT—_F:T2
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the years ended BRAOZERERBEZ-_ZE—N\Fh=
31 December 2018 and 2017: T—+tF+A=+—HLFEZE
& :
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z-N\F+=-ZA=+—HBLHF
E
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise price as at during during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period per Share 1.1.2018 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2018
RZB-NF RZB-NF
-A-H +ZA=t-H
RiHEH RS BRAEE HRAT R EREH ERTRE FREK ERKR AT
HK$
B
Director 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 10,034,030 - - - (10,034,030) -
(Note i)

% ZZ-RECATER ZE-RELATEAZE (P 3EiT)

ZE-\FtATRE
Ex-Director 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 8,034,030 - - - (8,034,030) -

(Note i)

g% ZZ-RECATER ZE-RELAfTHAZE (Hiz)

ZF-N\FtATRE
Employees 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 61,934,030 - - - (61,934,030) -
&8 “T-R5cA+tA ZF-RFtATtAZE

T \ELATRE
Consultants 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 138,000,000 - - - (138,000,000) -
A ZZ-RECATER ZE-RELAfTtHAE

- \FtATRE
Total 218,002,090 - - - (218,002,090) -
&5t
Exercisable at the end of the year -
RERTITE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.30 - - - HK$0.30 -
MWETFHTEE 0308 0.30% 7
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2012 scheme (Continued)

32.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

31. BREFTE (®)

\

—m_—ENE
BE-F-LFT A=t —ALF

J‘E
=
Number of share options
BREHNR
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise price as at during during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period per Share 1.1.2017 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2017
RZF—t% RZE—t%
-A-8 +ZA=1-H
R AH g BRITREE HATE FRRL FRR FRRK ERXK HATHE
HKS
B
Directors 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 60,308,060 - - (42,240,000) - 18,068,060
(Note i)
% “Z-REtAttR ZZF-RAFtAt+tHE Gk
ZZ-N\5tAtAA
Employees 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 166,934,030 - - (105,000,000 - 61,934,030
EE ZT-R5cA+tA ZE-RFtATtRE
ZE2-\FtATiR
Consultants 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 138,000,000 - - - - 138,000,000
5 “Z-REtAttA ZZF-AFtAt+tHE
ZZ-N\5tA+iH
Total 365,242,090 - - (147,240,000) - 218,002,090
@t
Exercisable at the end of the year 218,002,090
RERTITE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.30iE 1T - - HKS0.30# 7T - HK$030%T
MEFHER
Notes: B &

(i) It includes 8,034,030 share options granted to Mr. Wang Jian, who

resigned as a director of the Company on 24 January 2017.

(i) It represents share options granted to Mr. Li Yang, who resigned as a

director of the Company on 19 June 2018.

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the promissory
note receivable of HK$90,000,000 with principal amount of
HK$90,000,000, formed part of the Group’s consideration
receivables in relation to the disposal of East Favor Global
Investment Limited (“East Favor”) to Honghu Group Limited in

2017.
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32.

33.

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

The promissory note is secured by 9,608 shares of East Favor,
representing 49% of the equity interest of East Favor at the
issuance date. The promissory note bears interest at a rate of 6%
per annum. As at 31 December 2018, the sole shareholder of
Honghu Group Limited, Mr. Deng Junjie (“the Guarantor”), has
provided guarantee in favour of the Company for the payment
of all sums payable under the promissory note. On 20 March
2018, the Company and Honghu Group Limited entered into
a supplementary deed to extend the repayment date of the
promissory note to 20 March 2019 with other terms remaining
unchanged. As the promissory note is to mature on 20 March
2019, the amount is classified as current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018.

On 20 March 2019, the Company and Honghu Group Limited
entered into a second supplemental deed (the “Second
Supplemental Deed”). Pursuant to the Second Supplemental Deed,
the repayment date of the promissory note of HK$90,000,000 was
further extended to 20 March 2020 with other terms remaining
unchanged.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

—NE+ZA=F—HIFE

32.

33.

FE W & R R A& (4

HL R AR R, 608 A (HEE R
BT HHIRIBE Z249% ) (EH 1 - &
REBRFENE6 %R - R _F—N
Ft_A=1t—R BHEEEFGRAF
ﬂ&*ﬂﬁﬁﬁ‘m REE ([ERAD) AKX

RARZHARARLZREATENZ
B REHER R-_F—-/\F=A
—tH - ARREBEEEARAFR]
VHARBAGEALRRZERAH

HZIHF

RRE-F-NF=ZA=-1+8 Htblk
RAEFTE - ARALERER-F

—NFE=ZA-THIH FHESEN -
T N\F+_A=1t—"RHZEEYHK
RRARADERRBDEE -

RZE—NF=A=+H AQREE
BEBBRAFILE-NHHATRE
(B BREE]) - BEBEE N
FE Y - 90,000,0008 LA N EE VI8
REHE—FPERE_ZT_TF=HA
ZHA HMEFR g T

KEHE
REBERAEHEA

RIEBR - AEBRER T HRE
mZ TR HOEERO 2 BR&IEHE
TAFEMT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T T

Within one year —F KN 18,162 14,266
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF(BREEEMTF) 16,285 19,801
34,447 34,067

Operating lease payments represent rentals of the Group for
its office premises, Directors’ and staff's quarters. Leases are
negotiated for a range of one to three years and rentals are fixed
for a range of one to three years (2017: one to three years).
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COMMITMENTS 34. F&iE
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not ~ BLUEE— B AR B4
provided in the consolidated financial BARRGEMBRRER
statements in respect of acquisition ZEREH
of a subsidiary 68,000 -

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500
(2017: HK$1,500) per month, to the MPF Scheme, in which the
contribution is matched by employees.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Singapore
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes and
Central Provident Fund Scheme organised by the relevant local
government authorities in the PRC and Singapore respectively.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of its payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions
under these schemes.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of approximately HK$1,197,000
(2017: HK$1,125,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 36. AEFHE
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRGEVBRREMIBOMEES
statements, the Group has entered into the following transactions N REBRERE S FI S TR 5

with related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEASHMH
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key EENEMFEEEABRERNZH
management during the year were as follows: ST
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term benefits EHRER 11,134 13,950
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 A 95 129
11,229 14,079
The remuneration of Directors and key management is determined EENTEEEE 2 NeBTMNEE
by the remuneration committee having regards to the performance FLEFARBARTIZBEEET -

of individuals and market trends.
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37.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. AT EEMBRATFE
OF THE COMPANY

Nominal value
of issued and
Place of fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiaries and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMELR BRTRAERA KRR
WEARER EE 3R HE/EREL BRARKEE/EMERLA TERE
Directly Indirectly
EE k3
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-\F ZZ-+tF ZB-NF ZZ—tF
% % % %
Jet Air (Singapore) Private Limited Singapore SGD500,000 - - LE] 93 Air freight forwarding and
R (MR BERAA IR 500,000 1% 7T brokers for airline and
shipping companies
ZERMZE R
PNGIECES
Jet-Air (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$142,000,200 - - 100 100 Trading of securities and
ROTE(FB)ERAA B 142,000,200 7 trading of goods
EFEENBRER
Global Star Corporate Management  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - - Acts as administrative centre
Limited Bk 10,0007 of the Group
RECREEERAA ERREEZITHRL
Jet Dispatch Limited United States of Us$3,000 = - 100 100 Freight forwarding agent
America 3,000E T HERR
ZHEERE
Qianhai Honghu Teri Technology PRC HK$110,000,000 - - 100 100 Trading of goods
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* 1 110,000,000/ 0 BEAR
AEBSEREH ORI ARAF
Rongjinda Finance PRC US$30,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of finance lease
MeERE EF 30,000,000% 7T services and finance
consultancy services
REREEERBR
SRFARE
China Best Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Provision of money lending
BENHERLA EiE BT services
RETE R
Zhongrong International Securities Hong Kong HK$102,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of securities
Company Limited Bk 102,000,000 7T brokerage services
PRERISERAT REESELRE
Zhongrong International Futures Co.,  Hong Kong HK$67,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of futures
Limited B 67,000,000/ 70 brokerage services
hREREEERAR REEFRERSE
* The English name is for identification purpose only. * X ATEEEBR
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

37. X R EEMBLARFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)

Except for a limited partnership incorporated in the PRC during the
year, all other subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited
liability in the respective jurisdictions.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at
the end of both years or at any time during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

BREA—RRPEEMRIZBRE
BEERIN MBEEMHBRRHEAESR
BREEREMNLZBRAF -

RzmEFEFERIZMNEFER
{E {] B P 37 8 P /B8 1% R B AT AR I A
B EHES-

LRI ZAKEHNBRRSES
ARUAEEXEREEBRIEY
E7MBRAR -BEFRA RHEEMKN
BARZHBRERBBARITE

RBEIR > AR RAEMEAREER W
TEAZHWB AR -ZEWNB AR ZE
DEBBM T

Number of subsidiaries
MEBATEE

31 December 31 December

Principal activities Principal place of business 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
FEEK FTEEEME +=ZHA=+—8 +ZHA=+—H
Investment holding BVI
REZR EREXHE 10 9
Hong Kong
N 1 1
Inactive The PRC
BIEER A 3 1
BVI
RERELES 3 3
Samoa
1 & 35 1 1
Hong Kong
N 4 3
22 18

146




EEEEZEREMRAT 2018F 3K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 20188 2 —F—\FE+ A=+ —HIFZF

38. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. A QB 2R R K

OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L ENN 257 644
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 10 10
267 654

Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H fth E I FR T8 693 796
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (i) JFE WP B 2 R IR (BIRE)) 1,039,997 895,564
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 113,692 30,686
1,154,382 927,046
Current liability nEEE

Other payables H A FE A 5RE 6,313 7,146
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,148,069 919,900
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,148,336 920,554

Capital and reserves g 7S % 4
Share capital % Z< 508,428 363,228
Reserves (note (ii)) fik f (B =EGin)) 639,908 557,326
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,148,336 920,554

Notes: B 5

fEY ERNMBARRERIES L &
HIR - PR ERARERER

i) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured, (i)
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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38. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

3. A DB Z B MRREX (#)

Notes: (Continued) Mist: (48)
(i) Reserves i)y A&
Share
Share Contributed options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
BEE BARE BRERE S ] @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAET FAET FAT
(Note)
(PR%E)
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—HA—H 907,653 48,311 22,745 (413,503) 565,206
Loss for the year FRER - - - (7,880) (7,880)
Total comprehensive expense 4 A2 [ 37 HH 4458
for the year - - - (7,880) (7,880)
Forfeiture and lapse of T DT
share options - - (17,378) 17,378 -
At 31 December 2017 and ~ RZT—+L4F
at 1 January 2018 +tZA=+—-8EKk
—T-\F—HA—H 907,653 48,311 5,367 (404,005) 557,326
Loss for the year FREE - - - (14,859) (14,859)
Total comprehensive expense FR2E S H &5
for the year - - - (14,859) (14,859)
Issue of shares upon BLEMBRM B EITRG
placement of new shares 103,092 - - - 103,092
Transaction cost attributable ~ Z{THTAR FE(GE 2 22 A A
to issue of new shares (5,651) - - - (5,651)
Lapse of share options - R - - (5,367) 5,367 -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\EF
+=-A=+—H 1,005,094 48,311 - (413,497) 639,908
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38. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(i)

Reserves (Continued)
Notes:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in 1996 over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

39. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 31 December 2018, Esteem Sun, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Lucent Time, an independent
third party, entered into the share transfer and loan
assignment agreement, pursuant to which (i) Lucent Time
conditionally agreed to sell, and Esteem Sun conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Noble
Realm Limited and (ii) Lucent Time conditionally agreed
to assign and Esteem Sun conditionally agreed to assume
all rights and benefits of the interest free shareholder’s
loan, at an aggregate consideration of HK$135,000,000.
The acquisition was completed on 15 January 2019 and
Noble Realm Limited and its subsidiaries have become the
subsidiaries of the Company since then.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 31 December 2018 and 15 January 2019.
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39. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(b) On 16 January 2019, China Best Financial Holdings Limited
(“China Best Financial”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Fortunate Bay Limited (“Fortunate Bay”), an
independent third party, entered into a memorandum of
understanding, pursuant to which China Best Financial agreed
to enter into further negotiation with Fortunate Bay regarding
a possible conditional acquisition of 100% equity interest
in South Shore Group Limited (the “Proposed Acquisition”).
China Best Financial has paid a refundable earnest money
of HK$30,000,000 to Fortunate Bay at the same date which
would become part of the payment of the consideration
of the Proposed Acquisition in the event that the definitive

agreement is entered into.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement

dated 16 January 2019.

() On 1 March 2019, Rongjinda Finance entered into several
agreements with three of its lessees and one new borrower,

which included:

— a supplemental agreement with Shenzhen City Century

Culture Creative Limited* CFEIITH it 42 XL Al E

7)) (“Shenzhen Century”) pursuant to which Shenzhen
Century repaid the outstanding principal lease cost of
RMB7,000,000, interest of approximately RMB203,000
and services fees of approximately RMB608,000;

—  finance lease and consultancy supplemental agreements

with Shenzhen City Yuexin Creative Culture Limited*
a]) (“Shenzhen Yuexin”)
pursuant to which the parties agreed to extend the
term of the finance leases and consultancy services to
30 June 2019 and the outstanding lease payments shall
be approximately RMB55,248,000 and the service fees
shall be approximately RMB7,195,000 both payable by 5

(RYITmEEAEXLERA

instalments from 1 March 2019;
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39. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(d)

(Continued)

a debt settlement agreement with Heyuan City
Dongjiangyuan Hot Spring Resort Limited* () R &
JLRom & E B AR 2 F]) ("Heyuan Dongjiangyuan”)
and Beijing Kaiyitong Enterprise Management Limited
Company* (It R BEBOEEEBFMR A F) ("Beijing
Kaiyitong”) pursuant to which the parties agreed that
Heyuan Dongjiangyuan shall repay the outstanding
principal lease cost, interest and service fees of
approximately RMB6,979,000 in total while the remain
outstanding balance of approximately RMB76,764,000 is
assumed by Beijing Kaiyitong;

a loan agreement with Beijing Kaiyitong pursuant to
which Rongjinda Finance waived the interest and service
fees payable totalling approximately RMB16,764,000
and the remaining outstanding loan balance of
RMB60,000,000 will be repaid by 1 March 2021, with
the interest rate of 10% per annum payable every six
months.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 1 March 2019.

On 20 March 2019, Kang Yong International Limited, Honghu
Group Limited and Mr. Deng Junjie entered into the Second
Supplementary Deed to the promissory note whereby the
parties agreed, among other things, to further extend the
maturity date of the promissory note to 20 March 2020 (note

32).

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 20 March 2019.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-ALEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-N\F —FtF —E-RF —“Z-h¥ s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET FHET AL THT
Revenue W& 218,007 425,575 488,208 336,296 267,040
(Loss) profit before tax BrBLAT (B8 &7 (74,061) 32,538 (8,665) (49,318) (28,010)
Income tax expense FrisHmE % (1,488) (8,013) (2,385) (1,673) (331)
(Loss) profit for the year ERX(ER)EF (75,549) 24,525 (11,050) (50,991) (28,341)
(Loss) profit for the year DTEGEER (BE)
attributable to: S
Owners of the Company VN/NGIEZZ=UN (75,533) 24,533 (10,540) (48,686) (17,538)
Non-controlling interests FERER (16) (8) (510) (2,305) (10,803)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(BE)EM (75,549) 24,525 (11,050) (50,991) (28,341)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\§ —T—tF —T-RF —Z-FF ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET FET TEL AL
(Restated)
(&)
Total assets BEERBE 1,288,139 1,180,173 1,056,715 767,040 395,823
Total liabilities BERRE (53,021) (76,557) (31,072) (74,021) (72,277)
1,235,118 1,103,616 1,025,643 693,019 323,546
Equity attributable to owners VAN/NEIEZES N
of the Company FEAE = 1,235,176 1,103,657 1,025,686 716,494 344,553
Non-controlling interests FEIE R S (58) (41 (43) (23,475) (21,007)
1,235,118 1,103,616 1,025,643 693,019 323,546
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